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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

L3HARRIS TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
(Unaudited)

Quarter Ended Three Quarters Ended

(In millions, except per share amounts) September 29, 2023 September 30, 2022 September 29, 2023 September 30, 2022
Revenue from product sales and services $ 4915 $ 4,246 $ 14,079 $ 12,484
Cost of product sales and services (3,608) (3,052) (10,371) (8,819
Engineering, selling and administrative expenses (828) (742) (2,384) (2,239
Sale of asset group and business divestiture-related gains,

net — — 26 €
Impairment of goodwill and other assets — (802) (78) (802
Non-operating income, net 80 99 245 313
Interest expense, net (159) (70) (372) (205
Income (loss) before income taxes 400 (321) 1,145 74C
Income taxes (18) 20 (73) (96
Net income (loss) 382 (301) 1,072 644
Noncontrolling interests, net of income taxes 1 1 3) 2
Net income (loss) attributable to L3Harris Technologies, Inc. $ 383 $ (300) $ 1,069 $ 64€

Net income (loss) per common share attributable to L3Harris Technologies, Inc. common shareholders

Basic $ 202 $ (1.56) $ 564 $ 3.3€
Diluted $ 202 $ (1.56) $ 561 $ 3.32
Basic weighted-average common shares outstanding 189.3 191.3 189.6 192.2
Diluted weighted-average common shares outstanding 190.1 191.3 190.6 194.C

See accompanying Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited).




L3HARRIS TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
(Unaudited)

Quarter Ended Three Quarters Ended
(In millions) September 29, 2023 September 30, 2022 September 29, 2023 September 30, 2022
Net income (loss) $ 382 % (301) $ 1,072 $ 644
Other comprehensive loss:
Foreign currency translation loss, net of income taxes (45) (120) (20) (196
Net unrealized (loss) income on hedging derivatives, net of
income taxes 3) (12) 6 (14
Other comprehensive loss, recognized during the period (48) (132) 4) (210
Reclassification adjustments for gains included in net
income (10) (2) (29) (10
Other comprehensive loss, net of income taxes (58) (134) (33) (220
Total comprehensive income (loss) 324 (435) 1,039 424
Comprehensive loss (income) attributable to noncontrolling
interest 1 1 3) 2
Total comprehensive income (loss) attributable to L3Harris
Technologies, Inc. $ 325 $ (434) $ 1,036 $ 426

See accompanying Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited).




L3HARRIS TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(Unaudited)

(In millions, except shares) September 29, 2023 December 30, 2022
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 499 880
Receivables, net of allowances for collection losses of $24 and $40, respectively 1,381 1,251
Contract assets 3,477 2,987
Inventories 1,638 1,291
Income taxes receivable 43 40
Other current assets 463 258
Assets of business held for sale — 47
Total current assets 7,501 6,754
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment, net 2,818 2,104
Operating lease right-of-use assets 758 756
Goodwill 20,736 17,283
Other intangible assets, net 9,050 6,001
Deferred income taxes 87 73
Recoverable environmental remediation costs 382 —
Other non-current assets 961 553
Total assets $ 42,293 33,524
Liabilities and equity
Current liabilities
Short-term debt $ 2,033 2
Accounts payable 2,112 1,945
Contract liabilities 1,940 1,400
Compensation and benefits 461 398
Other accrued items 1,190 818
Income taxes payable 383 376
Current portion of long-term debt, net 363 818
Liabilities of business held for sale — 19
Total current liabilities 8,482 5,776
Non-current liabilities
Defined benefit plans 404 262
Operating lease liabilities 736 741
Long-term debt, net 11,140 6,225
Deferred income taxes 812 719
Reserves for environmental remediation costs 524 107
Other long-term liabilities 1,479 1,070
Total liabilities 23,577 14,900
Equity
Shareholders’ Equity:
Preferred stock, without par value; 1,000,000 shares authorized; none issued — —
Common stock, $1.00 par value; 500,000,000 shares authorized; issued and outstanding
189,439,991 and 190,611,458 shares at September 29, 2023 and December 30, 2022,
respectively 189 191
Other capital 15,470 15,677
Retained earnings 3,278 2,943
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (321) (288)
Total shareholders’ equity 18,616 18,523
Noncontrolling interests 100 101
Total equity 18,716 18,624
Total liabilities and equity $ 42,293 $ 33,524

See accompanying Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited).






(In millions)

Operating Activities

L3HARRIS TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(Unaudited)

Three Quarters Ended

September 29, 2023

September 30, 2022

Net income $ 1,072 % 644
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Amortization of acquisition-related intangibles 546 454
Depreciation and other amortization 270 243
Share-based compensation 67 92
Share-based matching contributions under defined contribution plans 172 161
Pension and other postretirement benefit plan income (209) (297)
Impairment of goodwill and other assets 78 802
Sale of asset group and business divestiture-related gains, net (26) (8)
Deferred income taxes 277) (454)
(Increase) decrease in:
Receivables, net 58] (93)
Contract assets (136) (111)
Inventories (195) (357)
Other current assets (87) 26
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable (18) 312
Contract liabilities 202 (133)
Compensation and benefits (55) (95)
Other accrued items (27) 2
Income taxes 15 259
Other operating activities (138) (71)
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,307 1,376
Investing Activities
Net cash paid for acquired businesses (6,688) —
Additions to property, plant and equipment (312) (181)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment, net — 10
Proceeds from sales of businesses, net 71 5
Proceeds from sale of asset group, net — 18
Cash used for equity investments (12) 47)
Other investing activities 2 7
Net cash used in investing activities (6,938) (188)
Financing Activities
Proceeds from borrowings, net of issuance cost 7,568 5
Repayments of borrowings (3,159) (12)
Change in commercial paper, net® 2,031 —
Proceeds from exercises of employee stock options 18 40
Repurchases of common stock (518) (900)
Cash dividends (652) (650)
Tax withholding payments associated with vested share-based awards (28) (44)
Other financing activities (6) 5)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 5,254 (1,566)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 4 (34)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (381) (412)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 880 941
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 499 $ 529

(1) See Note H: Debt and Credit Arrangements in the Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

See accompanying Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited).







L3HARRIS TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EQUITY

(In millions, except per share amounts)

Balance at June 30, 2023
Net income (loss)
Other comprehensive loss, net of income taxes
Shares issued under stock incentive plans
Shares issued under defined contribution plans
Share-based compensation expense

Cash dividends ($1.14 per share)
Other

Balance at September 29, 2023

Balance as of July 1, 2022
Net loss
Other comprehensive loss, net of income taxes
Shares issued under stock incentive plans
Shares issued under defined contribution plans
Share-based compensation expense

Tax withholding payments on share-based
awards

Repurchases and retirement of common stock
Cash dividends ($1.12 per share)
Other

Balance as of September 30, 2022

(Unaudited)

Accumulated Other

Retained Comprehensive Non-controlling
Common Stock  Other Capital Earnings Loss Interests Total Equity
$ 189 $ 15,391 $ 3,111 $ (263) $ 103 $ 18,531
— — 383 — (1) 382
— — — (58) — (58)
— 5 — — — 5
— 51 — — — 51
— 22 — — — 22
— — (216) — — (216)
— 1 — — 2 @)
$ 189 $ 15470 $ 3,278 $ (321) $ 100 $ 18,716
$ 192 $ 15814 $ 3312 $ (232) $ 104 $ 19,190
— — (300) — (1) (301)
_ — — (134) — (134)
— 6 — — — 6
— 48 — — — 48
— 23 — — — 23
— (6) — — — (6)
1) (141) (29) — — (171)
— — (215) — — (215)
— — — — ) )
$ 191 $ 15744 $ 2,768 $ (366) $ 102 $ 18,439

See accompanying Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited).




L3HARRIS TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EQUITY (continued)

(In millions, except per share amounts)

Balance at December 30, 2022
Net income
Other comprehensive loss, net of income taxes
Shares issued under stock incentive plans
Shares issued under defined contribution plans
Share-based compensation expense

Tax withholding payments on share-based
awards

Repurchases and retirement of common stock

Cash dividends ($3.42 per share)
Other

Balance at September 29, 2023

Balance as of December 31, 2021
Net income (loss)
Other comprehensive loss, net of income taxes
Shares issued under stock incentive plans
Shares issued under defined contribution plans
Share-based compensation expense

Tax withholding payments on share-based
awards

Repurchases and retirement of common stock
Cash dividends ($3.36 per share)
Other

Balance as of September 30, 2022

(Unaudited)

Accumulated Other

Retained Comprehensive Non-controlling
Common Stock  Other Capital Earnings Loss Interests Total Equity
$ 191 $ 15,677 $ 2,943 $ (288) $ 101 $ 18,624
— — 1,069 — 3 1,072
— — — (33) — (33)
— 18 — — — 18
1 171 = = = 172
— 67 — — — 67
— (28) — — — (28)
(3) (433) (82) — — (518)
- . (652) - . (652)
— ) — — (4) (6)
$ 189 $ 15,470 $ 3,278 $ (321) $ 100 $ 18,716
$ 194 $ 16,248 $ 2,917 $ (146) $ 106 $ 19,319
— — 646 — (2) 644
— — — (220) — (220)
— 40 — — — 40
1 160 = = = 161
— 92 — — — 92
— (44) — — — (44)
(4) (752) (144) — — (900)
= = (650) = = (650)
— — 1) — ) ®3)
$ 191 $ 15,744 $ 2,768 $ (366) $ 102 $ 18,439

See accompanying Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited).




NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)

NOTE A: BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of L3Harris Technologies, Inc. and its consolidated
subsidiaries. As used in these notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (these “Notes”), the terms “L3Harris,” “Company,” “we,”
“our” and “us” refer to L3Harris Technologies, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries. Intracompany transactions and accounts have been
eliminated.

The accompanying Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared by L3Harris in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) for interim financial information and with the rules and regulations of the U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”). Accordingly, such interim financial statements do not include all information and footnotes necessary for a complete
presentation of financial condition, results of operations, cash flows and equity in conformity with GAAP for annual financial statements and are
not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the full fiscal year or any subsequent period.

In the opinion of management, such interim financial statements reflect all adjustments (including normal recurring adjustments) considered
necessary for a fair presentation of our financial condition, results of operations, cash flows and equity for the periods presented therein. The
balance sheet at December 30, 2022 has been derived from our audited financial statements, but does not include all of the information and
footnotes required by GAAP for annual financial statements. The accompanying Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements should be read
in conjunction with Part Il: Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and the
Consolidated Financial Statements and accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-
K for the fiscal year ended December 30, 2022 (our “Fiscal 2022 Form 10-K”).

Business Realignment. Effective for fiscal 2023, which began December 31, 2022, we adjusted our reporting to better align our businesses
and transferred our Agile Development Group (“ADG”) business from our Integrated Mission Systems (“IMS”) segment to our Space & Airborne
Systems (“SAS”) segment.

The historical results, discussion and presentation of our business segments as set forth in the accompanying Condensed Consolidated
Financial Statements and these Notes reflect the impact of these changes for all periods presented in order to present segment information on
a comparable basis. There is no impact on our previously reported consolidated statements of operations, balance sheets, statements of cash
flows or statements of equity resulting from these changes.

See Note G: Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets and Note O: Business Segment Information in these Notes for further information.

Acquisition of Aerojet Rocketdyne Holdings, Inc. (“AJRD”) and New Business Segment. On July 28, 2023 we completed the acquisition of
AJRD. Upon completion of the acquisition, we established a new reportable segment, Aerojet Rocketdyne (“AR”). The operations of AJRD are
reported in the newly established AR segment and in our corporate segment. The AR segment consists of missile solutions with technologies
for strategic defense, missile defense, and hypersonic and tactical systems, as well as space propulsion and power systems for national
security space and exploration missions.

See Note B: Acquisitions, Divestitures and Asset Sales and Note O: Business Segment Information in these Notes for further information.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the accompanying Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements and these Notes and related disclosures. These estimates and
assumptions are based on experience and other information available prior to issuance of the accompanying Condensed Consolidated
Financial Statements and these Notes. Materially different results can occur as circumstances change and additional information becomes
known.

Reclassifications

The classification of certain prior year amounts have been adjusted in our Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements and these Notes
to conform to current year classifications.




NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)

Accounting Standards Updates

In October 2021, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2021-08, Business
Combinations (Topic 805): Accounting for Contract Assets and Contract Liabilities from Contracts with Customers, which requires entities to
recognize and measure contract assets and contract liabilities acquired in a business combination in accordance with Accounting Standards
Codification (“ASC”) 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606). The update generally results in an entity recognizing
contract assets and contract liabilities at amounts consistent with those recorded by the acquiree immediately before the acquisition date rather
than at fair value. The new standard is effective on a prospective basis for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2022, with early adoption
permitted. We adopted the new standard effective December 31, 2022. On January 3, 2023 and July 28, 2023 we completed the acquisitions of
Viasat, Inc.’s Tactical Data Links product line (“TDL”) and AJRD, respectively. We applied the provisions of ASU 2021-08 in our purchase
accounting for both acquisitions, and adoption of the new standard did not have a material impact on our operating results, financial position, or
cash flows. For more information regarding the TDL and AJRD acquisitions, see Note B: Acquisitions, Divestitures and Asset Sales in these
Notes.

NOTE B: ACQUISITIONS, DIVESTITURES AND ASSET SALES

Acquisition of Viasat’s TDL

On January 3, 2023, we completed the acquisition of TDL for a purchase price of $1.958 billion. The acquisition, which qualified as a
business acquisition, enhances our networking capability and provides access to the ubiquitous Link 16 waveform, better positioning us to
enable the U.S. Department of Defense (“DoD”) integrated architecture goal in joint all-domain command and control (“*JADC2").

On November 22, 2022, we established a $2.25 billion, three-year senior unsecured term loan facility by entering into a Loan Agreement
(“Term Loan 2025") with a syndicate of lenders, in part, to finance the acquisition. See Note H: Debt and Credit Arrangements in these Notes for
further information regarding Term Loan 2025.

Net assets and results of operations of TDL are reflected in our financial results commencing on January 3, 2023, the acquisition date, and
are reported within our Communication Systems (“CS”) segment.

We accounted for the acquisition of TDL using the acquisition method of accounting, which required us to measure identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed in the acquiree at their fair values as of the acquisition date, with the excess of the consideration transferred
over those fair values recorded as goodwill. Our preliminary fair value estimates and assumptions are subject to change as we obtain additional
information over the measurement period.

As of the acquisition date, the fair value of consideration transferred consisted of the following:

(In millions) January 3, 2023

Purchase price $ 1,958
Estimated net working capital and other adjustments 15
Cash consideration paid 1,973
Settlement of preexisting relationship® 1
Fair value of consideration transferred $ 1,974

(1) Prior to the acquisition, we had a preexisting relationship with Viasat's TDL business in the normal course of business. As of the acquisition date, our CS segment had a
receivable from Viasat's TDL business with a fair value of $1 million that was settled in connection with the acquisition.




NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)

The following table summarizes the preliminary allocation of the fair value of consideration transferred to assets acquired and liabilities
assumed as of the acquisition date and the measurement period adjustments recorded since the acquisition date through September 29, 2023:

January 3, 2023

Measurement Period Preliminary
(In millions) Preliminary Adjustments, Net?? Adjusted
Receivables $ 28 $ — 3 28
Contract assets 18 11 29
Inventories 164 (10) 154
Other current assets 9 — 9
Property, plant and equipment 50 — 50
Operating lease right-of-use assets 12 — 12
Goodwill 1,014 103 1,117
Other intangible assets 850 (95) 755
Deferred income taxes & 3 36
Other non-current assets 6 (1) 5
Total assets acquired $ 2,184 $ 11 $ 2,195
Accounts payable $ 20 $ — 3 20
Contract liabilities 28 — 28
Compensation and benefits 2 — 2
Other accrued items 119 1 120
Operating lease liabilities 10 — 10
Other long-term liabilities 31 10 41
Total liabilities assumed $ 210 $ 1 $ 221
Net assets acquired $ 1,974 $ — $ 1,974

(1) Fair value adjustments primarily related to refined assumptions in the valuation of customer relationship intangible assets.
(2) Assets acquired include $11 million of Contract assets that were reclassified from Inventories to Contract assets to conform TDL's accounting policies with those of L3Harris, as
required under ASC 805. As such, reclassified amounts will not be recognized as revenue in future periods.
Our preliminary estimates and assumptions are subject to change as we obtain additional information during the measurement period (up to
one year from the acquisition date); therefore, these provisional measurements of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed are subject to
change.

Intangible Assets. All intangible assets acquired in the TDL acquisition are subject to amortization. The preliminary fair value of identifiable
intangible assets acquired as of the acquisition date is as follows:

Total Useful Lives
(In millions) (In Years)
Developed technology $ 349 17
Customer relationships:®
Backlog 83 2
Government programs 323 16
Total customer relationships 406
Total identifiable intangible assets acquired $ 755

(1) TDL had backlog and government programs intangible assets that we classified as customer relationships.

10




NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)

We determined the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed by using available market information and various valuation
methods that require judgment related to estimations. The use of different estimates could produce different results. The fair value of intangible
assets is estimated using the relief from royalty method for the acquired developed technology and the multi-period excess earnings method for
the acquired customer relationships. Both of these level 3 fair value methods are income-based valuation approaches, which require judgment
to estimate appropriate discount rates, royalty rates related to the developed technology intangible assets, revenue growth attributable to the
intangible assets and remaining useful lives. The fair value of inventory was estimated using the replacement cost approach and comparative
sales method, which require estimates of replacement cost for raw materials and estimates of expected sales price less costs to complete and
dispose of the inventory, plus a profit margin for efforts incurred for the work in progress and finished goods.

Forward Loss Provision. We have recorded a preliminary forward loss provision of $86 million in connection with certain acquired contracts,
which was included in the “Other accrued items” line item in our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet. The forward loss provisions will be
recognized as a reduction to cost of sales as we incur costs to satisfy the associated performance obligations. There will be no net impact on
our Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations. We recognized $15 million and $29 million for amortization of the forward loss provision
during the quarter and three quarters ended September 29, 2023, respectively.

Off-market Customer Contracts. We have identified certain contractual obligations with customers with economic returns that are higher or
lower than could be realized in market transactions as of the acquisition date and have recorded liabilities for the preliminary acquisition date
fair value of the off-market components. The preliminary acquisition date fair value of the off-market components is a net liability of $64 million,
consisting of $33 million and $31 million included in the “Other accrued items” and “Other long-term liabilities” line items in our Condensed
Consolidated Balance Sheet, respectively, and excludes any amounts already recognized in forward loss provisions (see discussion in the
preceding paragraph). We measured the fair value of these components as the amount by which the terms of the contract with the customer
deviates from the terms that a market participant could have achieved at the acquisition date. The off-market components of these contracts will
be recognized as an increase to revenue as we incur costs to satisfy the associated performance obligations. We recognized $7 million and $22
million for amortization of off-market contract liabilities during the quarter and three quarters ended September 29, 2023, respectively. Future
estimated revenue from the amortization of off-market contract liabilities (based on the estimated pattern of cash flows to be incurred to satisfy
associated performance obligations) is $11 million in the remainder of 2023, $22 million in 2024 and immaterial amounts thereafter.

Goodwill. The $1.117 billion of goodwill recognized is attributable to the assembled workforce, in addition to synergies expected to be
realized through integration with existing CS segment businesses and growth opportunities in the space domain. The acquired goodwill is tax
deductible. See Note G: Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets in these Notes for further information.

Financial Results. The following table includes revenue and income before income taxes of TDL included in our Condensed Consolidated
Statement of Operations for the quarter ended September 29, 2023 and for the acquisition date through September 29, 2023 and the
comparable periods of calendar year 2022. The comparable period results do not include any integration synergies or accounting conformity
adjustments and are not necessarily indicative of our results of operations that actually would have been obtained had the acquisition of TDL
been completed for the period presented, or which may be realized in the future.

Quarter Ended Three Quarters Ended
(In millions) September 29, 2023 September 30, 2022 September 29, 2023 September 30, 2022
Revenue $ 97 $ 105 $ 261 $ 290
Income before income taxes 38 30 86 55

Acquisition-Related Costs. Acquisition-related costs have been expensed as incurred. In connection with the TDL acquisition, we recorded
transaction and integration costs of $10 million and $64 million for the quarter and three quarters ended September 29, 2023, respectively,
which were included in the Engineering, selling and administrative expenses line item in our Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations.

Acquisition of AJRD

On July 28, 2023 we acquired AJRD, a technology-based engineering and manufacturing company that develops and produces missile
solutions with technologies for strategic defense, missile defense, and hypersonic and tactical systems, as well as space propulsion and power
systems for national security space and exploration missions. The acquisition provides us access to a new market. We acquired 100 percent of
AJRD for a total net purchase price of

11




NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)

$4.715 billion. The acquisition was financed through the issuance and sale of $3.25 billion aggregate principal amount of new long-term fixed-
rate debt and draw down under the 2023 Credit Agreement. See Note H: Debt and Credit Arrangements in these Notes for further information
regarding the financing of the AJRD acquisition.

Net assets and results of operations of AJRD are reflected in our financial results commencing on July 28, 2023, the acquisition date, and
are reported in our newly created AR segment and corporate headquarters.

We accounted for the acquisition of AJRD using the acquisition method of accounting, which required us to measure identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed in the acquiree at their fair values as of the acquisition date, with the excess of the consideration transferred
over those fair values recorded as goodwill. Our preliminary fair value estimates and assumptions are subject to change as we obtain additional
information over the measurement period and our measurement of certain assets and contingencies, such as intangible assets, property, plant

and equipment, real estate held for development and leasing, loss contracts, environmental matters and related deferred tax impacts remain
preliminary for completion of the related valuations.

As of the acquisition date, the fair value of consideration transferred consisted of the following:

(In millions) July 28, 2023

Cash consideration paid for AJRD outstanding common stock & equity awards $ 4,748
AJRD debt settled by L3Harris 257
Cash consideration paid 5,005
Less cash acquired (290)
Fair value of consideration transferred $ 4,715

12



NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)

The following table summarizes the preliminary allocation of the fair value of consideration transferred to assets acquired and liabilities

assumed as of the acquisition date:

(In millions) July 28, 2023
Receivables $ 156
Contract assets 338
Inventories 14
Income taxes receivable 3
Other current assets 114
Property, plant and equipment 574
Operating lease right-of-use assets 51
Goodwill 2,348
Other intangible assets 2,860
Recoverable environmental remediation costs 383
Other non-current assets 175
Total assets acquired $ 7,016
Accounts payable 145
Contract liabilities 310
Compensation and benefits 116
Income taxes payable 6
Current portion of long-term debt, net 1
Other accrued items 278
Defined benefit plans 223
Operating lease liabilities 40
Long-term debt, net 41
Deferred income taxes 398
Reserves for environmental remediation costs 417
Other long-term liabilities 326
Total liabilities assumed $ 2,301

Fair value of consideration transferred $ 4,715

We determined the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed by using available market information and various valuation
methods that require judgment related to estimates. Due to the timing of the AJRD acquisition, our accounting for the acquisition remains
preliminary. Amounts recorded associated with these assets and liabilities are based on preliminary calculations and estimates. Our preliminary
estimates and assumptions are subject to change as we obtain additional information during the measurement period (up to one year from the

acquisition date). Any potential adjustments made could be material in relation to the preliminary values presented above.

Intangible Assets. All intangible assets acquired in the AJRD acquisition are subject to amortization. The preliminary fair value of identifiable
intangible assets acquired as of the acquisition date is as follows:
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NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)

Total Useful Lives
(In millions) (In Years)
Trade names $ 120 10-20
Customer relationships:®
Backlog 360 3-4
Government programs 2,380 15-25
Total customer relationships 2,740
Total identifiable intangible assets acquired $ 2,860

(1) AJRD had backlog and government programs intangible assets that we classified as customer relationships.

The fair value of intangible assets is estimated using the relief from royalty method for the acquired trade names and the multi-period
excess earnings method for the acquired customer relationships. Both of these level 3 fair value methods are income-based valuation
approaches, which require judgment to estimate appropriate discount rates, royalty rates related to the trade names intangible assets, revenue
growth attributable to the intangible assets and remaining useful lives.

Reserves for Environmental Remediation Costs and Recoverable Environmental Remediation Costs. See Note P: Legal Proceedings and
Contingencies in these Notes for additional information.

Forward Loss Provision. We have recorded a preliminary forward loss provision of $37 million which was included in "Other accrued items”
line item in our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet. The forward loss provisions will be recognized as a reduction to cost of sales as we
incur costs to satisfy the associated performance obligations. There will be no net impact on our Condensed Consolidated Statement of
Operations. We recognized $4 million from amortization of the forward loss provision for the acquisition date through September 29, 2023.

Off-market Customer Contracts. We have identified certain contractual obligations with customers with economic returns that are higher or
lower than could be realized in market transactions as of the acquisition date and have recorded liabilities for the preliminary acquisition date
fair value of the off-market components. The preliminary acquisition date fair value of the off-market components is a net liability of $53 million,
consisting of $26 million and $27 million included in the “Other accrued items” and “Other long-term liabilities” line items in our Condensed
Consolidated Balance Sheet, respectively, and excludes any amounts already recognized in forward loss provisions (see discussion in the
preceding paragraph). We measured the fair value of these components as the amount by which the terms of the contract with the customer
deviates from the terms that a market participant could have achieved at the acquisition date. The off-market components of these contracts will
be recognized as an increase to revenue as we incur costs to satisfy the associated performance obligations. We recognized $4 million from
amortization of off-market contract liabilities during the period from the acquisition date through September 29, 2023.

Goodwill. The $2,348 million of goodwill recognized is attributable to AJRD’s market presence as the provider of advanced propulsion and
power systems for nearly every major U.S. space and missile program, the assembled workforce and established operating infrastructure. The
acquired goodwill is not tax deductible. See Note G: Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets in these Notes for further information.
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(Unaudited)

Financial Results. Revenue and income before income taxes of AJRD included in our Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations for
the acquisition date through September 29, 2023 was $455 million and $56 million, respectively. The following table presents unaudited pro
forma financial results of the operations acquired with AJRD. The pro forma results for the three quarters ended September 29, 2023 were
prepared as if the acquisition was completed on the first day of our fiscal 2023, December 31, 2022, and include adjustments to remove costs
directly attributable to the acquisition, such as transaction-related costs and the impact of purchase price adjustments, and corporate expenses
such as pension, interest, and amortization. The pro forma results for the three quarters ended September 30, 2022 were prepared as if the
acquisition was completed on the first day of our fiscal 2022, January 1, 2022, and include adjustments to remove corporate expenses such as
pension, interest, and amortization. The pro forma results do not include any integration synergies and are not necessarily indicative of our
results of operations that actually would have been obtained had the acquisition of AJRD been completed for the period presented, or which
may be realized in the future.

Three Quarters Ended

(In millions) September 29, 2023 September 30, 2022
Revenue $ 1,740 $ 1,589
Income before income taxes 156 180

Acquisition-Related Costs. Acquisition-related costs have been expensed as incurred. In connection with the AJRD acquisition, we recorded
transaction and integration costs of $45 million and $67 million for the quarter and three quarters ended September 29, 2023, respectively,
which were included in the “Engineering, selling and administrative expenses” line item in our Condensed Consolidated Statement of
Operations.

Divestiture of Visual Information Solutions (“VIS”)

On April 6, 2023, we completed the sale of VIS for a sale price of $70 million and recognized a pre-tax gain of $26 million included in the
“Sale of asset group and business divestiture-related gains, net” line item in our Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations for the
quarter and three quarters ended September 29, 2023, respectively. After selling costs and purchase price adjustments, the net cash proceeds
for the sale of VIS were $71 million. The operating results of VIS were reported in the SAS segment through the date of divestiture.

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of VIS were classified as held for sale in our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet as
of December 30, 2022.

Completed Divestiture and Asset Sale for the Three Quarters Ended September 30, 2022

During the three quarters ended September 30, 2022, we completed one business divestiture and one asset sale from our IMS segment for
combined net cash proceeds of $23 million and recognized a pre-tax gain of $8 million associated with the asset sale included in the “Sale of
asset group and business divestiture-related gains, net” line item in our Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations for the quarter and
three quarters ended September 30, 2022.

Fair Value of Businesses and Goodwill Allocation. For purposes of allocating goodwill to the disposal groups that represent a portion of a
reporting unit, we determine the fair value of each disposal group based on the respective negotiated selling price, and the fair value of the
retained businesses of the respective reporting unit based on a combination of market-based and income based valuation techniques, utilizing
quoted market prices, comparable publicly reported transactions and projected discounted cash flows. These fair value determinations are
categorized as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy due to their use of internal projections and unobservable measurement inputs. See Note G:
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets and Note L: Fair Value Measurements in these Notes for additional information.

NOTE C: STOCK OPTIONS AND OTHER SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

At September 29, 2023, we had stock options or other share-based compensation awards outstanding under several employee stock
incentive plans (“L3Harris SIPs”). The compensation cost related to our share-based awards that was charged against income for the quarter
and three quarters ended September 29, 2023 was $22 million and $67 million, respectively, and $23 million and $92 million for the quarter and
three quarters ended September 30, 2022, respectively.
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Awards granted to participants under L3Harris SIPs and the weighted-average grant-date fair value per share during the three quarters
ended September 29, 2023 and September 30, 2022 are as follows:

Three Quarters Ended September 29, 2023 Three Quarters Ended September 30, 2022

Weighted-Average Weighted-Average
Grant-Date Fair Value Grant-Date Fair Value
(In millions, except per share amounts) Shares Per Share Shares Per Share
Stock options granted® 04 $ 209.88 04 $ 231.71
200.61 03 $ 224.79

Restricted stock and restricted stock units granted® 03 $
Performance share units grants® 02 $ 223.09 02 $ 258.83

(1) Other than certain stock options granted in connection with new hires, our stock options generally ratably vest in equal amounts over a three-year period.
(2) Other than certain restricted stock units granted in connection with new hires, our restricted stock units generally cliff vest after three-years.
(3) Our performance share units are subject to performance criteria and generally vest after the three-year performance period.

There were no significant grants of stock options, restricted stock units or performance share units to participants under the L3Harris SIPs
during the quarters ended September 29, 2023 and September 30, 2022.

The aggregate number of shares of our common stock issued under L3Harris SIPs, net of shares withheld for tax purposes, was 0.1 million
and 0.5 million for the quarter and three quarters ended September 29, 2023, respectively, and 0.1 million and 0.7 million for the quarter and
three quarters ended September 30, 2022, respectively.

See Note 15: Stock Options and Other Share-Based Compensation in our Fiscal 2022 Form 10-K for additional information regarding the

L3Harris SIPs.
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NOTE D: ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS ("AOCL")

The components of AOCL are summarized below:

Net unrealized losses Unrecognized
. Foreign currency on hedging postretirement
(In millions) translation derivatives obligations Total AOCL
Balance at December 30, 2022 $ (237) $ (79) $ 28 $ (288)
Other comprehensive (loss) income, before reclassifications
to earnings and income taxes (10) 8 — (2)
Income taxes — (2) — (2)
Other comprehensive (loss) income before reclassifications
to earnings, net of income taxes (10) 6 — (4)
Losses (gains) reclassified to earnings, before income taxes — 8 (42) (38)
Income taxes — (1) 10 9
Losses (gains) reclassified to earnings, net of income taxes® — 2 (31) (29)
Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of income taxes (10) 8 (31) (33)
Balance at September 29, 2023 $ (247) $ (71) s (3) $ (321)
Balance at December 31, 2021 $ (118) $ (89) $ 61 $ (146)
Other comprehensive loss, before reclassifications to
earnings and income taxes (196) (18) — (214)
Income taxes — 4 — 4
Other comprehensive loss before reclassifications to
earnings, net of income taxes (196) (14) — (210)
Losses (gains) reclassified to earnings, before income taxes — 7 (18) (11)
Income taxes — (2) 3 1
Losses (gains) reclassified to earnings, net of income taxes® — 5 (15) (20)
Other comprehensive loss, net of income taxes (196) (9) (15) (220)
Balance at September 30, 2022 $ (314) $ (98) $ 46 $ (366)

(1) Losses (gains) reclassified to earnings are included in the “Revenue from product sales and services,” “Interest expense, net” and “Non-operating income, net” line items in
our Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations.

NOTE E: CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Contract assets include unbilled amounts typically resulting from revenue recognized exceeding amounts billed to customers for contracts
utilizing the percentage of completion (“POC”) cost-to-cost revenue recognition method. We bill customers as work progresses in accordance
with agreed-upon contractual terms, either at periodic intervals, upon achievement of contractual milestones or upon deliveries and, in certain
arrangements, the customer may withhold payment of a small portion of the contract price until contract completion. Contract liabilities include
advance payments and billings in excess of revenue recognized, including deferred revenue associated with extended product warranties.
Contract assets and liabilities are reported on a contract-by-contract basis at the end of each reporting period.

Contract assets and contract liabilities are summarized below:

(In millions) September 29, 2023 December 30, 2022
Contract assets® $ 3,477 $ 2,987
Contract liabilities, current® (1,940) (1,400)
Contract liabilities, non-current® (104) (117)

Net contract assets $ 1,433 $ 1,470

(1) Includes approximately $386 million of AR contract assets at September 29, 2023.
(2) Includes approximately $315 million of AR contract liabilities at September 29, 2023.
(3) The non-current portion of contract liabilities is included as a component of the “Other long-term liabilities” line item in our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet.

The components of contract assets are summarized below:

(In millions) September 29, 2023 December 30, 2022
Unbilled contract receivables, gross $ 7,126 $ 4,629
Unliquidated progress payments and advances (3,649) (1,642)

Contract assets $ 3,477 $ 2,987

Contract assets and liabilities as of September 29, 2023 and December 30, 2022 were impacted primarily by the timing of contractual billing
milestones. Revenue recognized related to contract liabilities that were outstanding at the end of the respective prior fiscal year were $223
million and $1.12 billion for the quarter and three quarters ended September 29, 2023, respectively, and $196 million and $967 million for the
quarter and three quarters ended September 30, 2022, respectively.

NOTE F: INVENTORIES

Inventories are summarized below:



(In millions)

September 29, 2023

December 30, 2022

Finished products® $
Work in process
Materials and supplies

Inventories® $

@

302 $ 181
513 396
823 714
1,638 $ 1,291

Includes approximately $114 million of TDL inventory of which $70 million is included in finished products at September 29, 2023.
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NOTE G: GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill

The assignment of goodwill and changes in the carrying amount of goodwill, by business segment, are as follows:

(In millions) SAS IMS Cs AR Total

Balance at December 30, 2022 $ 5778 $ 7,709 $ 3,796 $ — $ 17,283
Reallocation of goodwill in business realignment 327 (327) — — —
Goodwill from TDL acquisition — — 1,117 — 1,117
Goodwill from AJRD acquisition — — — 2,348 2,348
Goodwill decrease from divestitures® 9 — — — 9)
Currency translation adjustments (5) 2 — (3)

Balance at September 29, 2023 $ 6,091 $ 7,384 $ 4913 $ 2,348 $ 20,736

(1) During the three quarters ended September 29, 2023, we assigned an additional $9 million of goodwill to our VIS business and completed the divestiture. We derecognized
$39 million of goodwill as part of determining the gain on sale. The assets (including goodwill) of VIS were included in the “Assets of business held for sale” line item in our
Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 30, 2022. See Note B: Acquisitions, Divestitures and Asset Sales in these Notes for further information.
Reallocation of Goodwill in Business Realignment. Effective December 31, 2022, we adjusted our reporting to better align our businesses

and transferred our ADG business (a reporting unit) from our IMS segment to our SAS segment (also a reporting unit). In connection with the

realignment, we reduced our reporting units from nine to eight as the ADG reporting unit and all $327 million of associated goodwill was
absorbed by our existing SAS reporting unit given the economic similarities of the two reporting units. Immediately before the realignment, we
performed a qualitative impairment assessment over our SAS reporting unit and a quantitative impairment assessment over our ADG reporting
unit. Immediately after the realignment, we performed a quantitative impairment assessment over the SAS reporting unit. We prepared
estimates of the fair value of our pre-realignment ADG reporting unit and post-realignment SAS reporting unit based on a combination of
market-based valuation techniques, utilizing quoted market prices, comparable publicly reported transactions and an income-based valuation
technique using projected discounted cash flows. These assessments indicated no impairment existed either before or after the realignment.

Goodwill from TDL Acquisition. In connection with the January 3, 2023 acquisition of TDL, we recorded $1,117 million of goodwill in our
Broadband reporting unit within our CS segment. See Note B: Acquisitions, Divestitures and Asset Sales in these Notes for further information.

Goodwill from AJRD Acquisition. In connection with the July 28, 2023 acquisition of AJRD, we recorded $2,348 million of goodwill in our AR
segment, which is also the AR reporting unit. See Note B: Acquisitions, Divestitures and Asset Sales in these Notes for further information.

Fiscal 2022 Impairments. During the quarter ended September 30, 2022, we determined that goodwill related to our Broadband, ADG and
Electro Optical reporting units was impaired and we recorded non-cash impairment charges of $355 million, $313 million and $134 million,
respectively, in the “Impairment of goodwill and other assets” line item in our Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations. See Note 9:
Goodwill in our Fiscal 2022 Form 10-K for further information on our fiscal 2022 goodwill impairments.

In conjunction with our 2023 business realignment, certain businesses within our ADG reporting unit were aligned with our Electro Optical
and SAS reporting units. As such, fiscal 2022 impairment charges related to ADG and Electro Optical of $367 million and $80 million, are
included in our Electro Optical and SAS reporting units, respectively, in our comparative financial results for the quarter and three quarters
ended September 30, 2022.
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Intangible Assets

Identifiable intangible assets, net are summarized below:

September 29, 2023 December 30, 2022
Gross Carrying Accumulated Net Carrying Gross Carrying Accumulated Net Carrying
(In millions) Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount®
Customer relationships $ 9,270 $ 2,658 $ 6,612 $ 6,124 $ 2,189 $ 3,935
Developed technologies 915 435 480 566 366 200
Contract backlog 2 1 1 1 1 —
Trade names — divisions 215 61 154 95 53 42
Other 2 2 — 2 2 —
Total finite-lived identifiable intangible
assets 10,404 3,157 7,247 6,788 2,611 4,177
In-process research and development — — — 21 — 21
Trade names — corporate 1,803 — 1,803 1,803 — 1,803
Total identifiable intangible assets, net $ 12,207 $ 3,157 $ 9,050 $ 8,612 $ 2611 $ 6,001

(1) During the three quarters ended September 29, 2023, we completed the divestiture of our VIS business. We derecognized $10 million of intangible assets as part of
determining the gain on sale that was assigned during fiscal 2022. See Note B: Acquisitions, Divestitures and Asset Sales in these Notes for further information.

Intangible assets acquired are as follows:

TDL Acquisition AJRD Acquisition
Gross Carrying Accumulated Net Carrying Gross Carrying Accumulated Net Carrying
(In millions) Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount
Customer relationships $ 406 $ 46 $ 360 $ 2,740 $ 37 $ 2,7(
Developed technologies 349 15 334 — — -
Trade names — divisions — — — 120 1 17

The most significant identifiable intangible asset that is separately recognized for our business combinations is customer relationships. For
further description of our accounting policies related to intangible assets acquired in the TDL and AJRD acquisitions, see Note B: Acquisitions,
Divestitures and Asset Sales in these Notes, and for our accounting policies related to all other intangible assets, see Note 10: Intangible
Assets, Net in our Fiscal 2022 Form 10-K.

Amortization expense for identifiable finite-lived intangible assets was $208 million and $546 million for the quarter and three quarters
ended September 29, 2023, respectively, and was $151 million and $454 million, for the quarter and three quarters ended September 30, 2022,
respectively, which primarily related to assets acquired in connection with business combinations.

Future estimated amortization expense for identifiable intangible assets is as follows:

(In millions)
Year 1 $ 881
Year 2 805
Year 3 724
Year 4 572
Year 5 519
Thereafter 3,746
Total $ 7,247
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In-process R&D Impairment. During the three quarters ended September 29, 2023, we closed a facility, which triggered an evaluation of
the in-process research and development (“R&D”) related to the operations of the closed facility for impairment. As a result we recorded a $21
million non-cash charge for the impairment of in-process R&D intangible assets, which is included in the “Impairment of goodwill and other

assets” line item in our Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations.

NOTE H: DEBT AND CREDIT ARRANGEMENTS

Long-Term Debt
Long-term debt, net is summarized below:

(In millions)

Variable-rate debt:
Floating rate notes, due March 10, 2023 (“Floating 2023 Notes”)

Term loan, due November 21, 2025

Fixed-rate debt:
3.85% notes, due June 15, 2023 (“3.85% 2023 Notes”)
3.95% notes, due May 28, 2024
3.832% notes, due April 27, 2025
7.00% debentures, due January 15, 2026
3.85% notes, due December 15, 2026
5.40% notes, due January 15, 2027 (“5.4% 2027 Notes")
6.35% debentures, due February 1, 2028
4.40% notes, due June 15, 2028
2.90% notes, due December 15, 2029
1.80% notes, due January 15, 2031
5.40% notes, due July 31, 2033 (“5.4% 2033 Notes”)
4.854% notes, due April 27, 2035
6.15% notes, due December 15, 2040
5.054% notes, due April 27, 2045

5.60% notes, due July 31, 2053 (“5.6% 2053 Notes”)
Total variable and fixed-rate debt

Financing lease obligations and other debt
Total debt

Plus: unamortized bond premium

Less: unamortized discounts and issuance costs
Total debt, net

Less: current portion of long-term debt, net
Total long-term debt, net

Long Term Debt Issued

September 29, 2023

December 30, 2022

— 3 250
2,250 —
— 800
350 350
600 600
100 100
550 550
1,250 —
26 26
1,850 1,850
400 400
650 650
1,500 —
400 400
300 300
500 500
500 —
11,226 6,776
277 222
11,503 6,998
55 70
(55) (25)
11,503 7,043
(363) (818)
11,140 $ 6,225

Variable Rate Debt. On November 22, 2022, we established a $2.25 billion, three-year senior unsecured term loan facility by entering into

Term Loan 2025 with a syndicate of lenders that matures on November 21, 2025.

On January 3, 2023, we drew $2.0 billion on Term Loan 2025 and utilized the proceeds to fund the cash consideration paid and a portion of
the associated transaction and integration costs related to the TDL acquisition. See Note B: Acquisitions, Divestitures and Asset Sales in these

Notes for further information on the TDL acquisition.

On March 14, 2023, we drew an additional $250 million on Term Loan 2025 and utilized the proceeds to repay our Floating 2023 Notes.

At September 29, 2023, we had $2.25 billion outstanding under Term Loan 2025. There were no borrowings outstanding under Term Loan

2025 at December 30, 2022.
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Borrowings under Term Loan 2025 bear interest at: (i) the sum of the term secured overnight financing rate (“SOFR”") for any tenor
comparable to the applicable interest period, plus 0.10%, plus an applicable margin between 1.125% and 1.875% that varies based on ratings
of our senior unsecured long-term debt securities (“Senior Debt Ratings”). At September 29, 2023, the interest rate on Term Loan 2025 was
6.7% (6.1% net of the impact of our interest rate cap derivative). See Note 19: Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities in our Fiscal 2022
Form 10-K for further information on our interest rate cap derivative.

Fixed Rate Debt. On July 31, 2023, we closed the issuance and sale of $3.25 billion aggregate principal amount of new long-term fixed-rate
debt consisting of the 5.4% 2027 Notes, the 5.4% 2033 Notes and the 5.6% 2053 Notes (collectively, the “AJRD Notes”). The AJRD Notes were
used to fund a portion of the purchase price for the AJRD acquisition, which closed on July 28, 2023, and to pay related fees and expenses.

Interest on the 5.4% 2027 Notes is payable semi-annually in arrears on January 15 and July 15 of each year, commencing on January 15,
2024. Interest on the 5.4% 2033 Notes and 5.6% 2053 Notes is payable semi-annually in arrears on January 31 and July 31 of each year,
commencing on January 31, 2024.

We may redeem the 5.4% 2027 Notes, 5.4% 2033 Notes and 5.6% 2053 Notes prior to January 15, 2027, April 30, 2033 and January 31,
2053, respectively, in whole or in part, at our option, at a redemption price equal to the greater of: (i) the sum of the present values of the
remaining scheduled payments of the principal and interest thereon discounted to the redemption date on a semi-annual basis at the “Treasury
Rate,” as defined in the AJRD Notes, plus 15 basis points for the 5.4% 2027 Notes and 25 basis points for the 5.4% 2033 Notes and 5.6% 2053
Notes, less interest accrued to the date of redemption; (ii) or 100% of the principal amount of the respective notes plus, in either case, accrued
interest and unpaid interest thereon to the redemption date. After April 30, 2033 and January 31, 2053, we may redeem the 5.4% 2033 Notes
and the 5.6% 2053 Notes, respectively, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount being redeemed plus accrued and unpaid
interest thereon to the redemption date.

Upon a “Change of Control Repurchase Event,” as defined in the AJRD Notes, we may be required to make an offer to repurchase the
AJRD Notes at a price equal to 101% of the aggregate principal amount of the notes being repurchased, plus accrued interest on the notes
being repurchased to, but not including, the date of repurchase.

We incurred the $9 million, $13 million, and $6 million of debt issuance costs for the 5.4% 2027 Notes, 5.4% 2033 Notes and 5.6% 2053
Notes, respectively, which are being amortized using the effective interest rate method over the life of each respective note. Such amortization
is included as a component of the “Interest expense, net” line item in our Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations.

There were no issuances of variable and fixed-rate long-term debt during the three quarters ended September 30, 2022.

Long-Term Debt Repayments

On March 14, 2023, we repaid the entire outstanding $250 million aggregate principal amount of our Floating 2023 Notes through a
$250 million draw on Term Loan 2025 as described above under “Long-Term Debt Issued.” The Floating 2023 Notes were classified as “Long-
term debt, net” in our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 30, 2022.

On June 15, 2023, we repaid the entire outstanding $800 million aggregate principal amount of our 3.85% 2023 Notes through cash on
hand and the issuance of commercial paper during the three quarters ended September 29, 2023.

There were no repayments of variable and fixed-rate long-term debt during the three quarters ended September 30, 2022.

2023 Credit Agreement

On March 10, 2023, we established a $2.4 billion, 364-day senior unsecured revolving credit facility by entering into a 364-Day Credit
Agreement (“2023 Credit Agreement”) with a syndicate of lenders.

Proceeds of the initial funding of loans under the 2023 Credit Agreement were required to be used to finance a portion of the purchase price
for the acquisition of AJRD and for the related fees, taxes, costs and expenses, and subsequent borrowings may be used for working capital
purposes.
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At our election, borrowings under the 2023 Credit Agreement, which are designated in U.S. Dollars, bear interest at the sum of the term
SOFR rate or the Base Rate (as defined in the 2023 Credit Agreement), plus an applicable margin. In addition to interest payable on the
principal amount of indebtedness outstanding, beginning June 6, 2023, we are required to pay a quarterly unused commitment fee that varies
based on our Senior Debt Ratings.

The 2023 Credit Agreement also contains representations, warranties, covenants and events of default that are substantially similar to the
existing Revolving Credit Agreement, dated as of July 29, 2022 (2022 Credit Agreement”). The 2023 Credit Agreement matures on December
8, 2023, provided that we may extend the maturity of any loans outstanding under the 2023 Credit Agreement by one year, subject to the
satisfaction of certain conditions.

On July 28, 2023, we borrowed $2.1 billion under the 2023 Credit Agreement and used the proceeds together with proceeds from the AJRD
Notes to fund the AJRD acquisition and to pay related fees and expenses. All borrowings under the 2023 Credit Agreement were repaid using
proceeds from commercial paper during the quarter ended September 29, 2023. At September 29, 2023 we had no outstanding borrowings and
were in compliance with all covenants under the 2023 Credit Agreement. For additional information regarding the 2023 Credit Agreement, see
our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 16, 2023.

2022 Credit Agreement

On July 29, 2022, we established a $2.0 billion, five-year senior unsecured revolving credit facility (2022 Credit Facility”) under the 2022
Credit Agreement, with a syndicate of lenders. At September 29, 2023, we had no outstanding borrowings and were in compliance with all
covenants under the 2022 Credit Agreement.

For a description of the 2022 Credit Agreement and related covenants, see Note 12: Credit Arrangements in our Fiscal 2022 Form 10-K.

Commercial Paper Program

On March 14, 2023, we established a new commercial paper program (“CP Program”), which replaced our prior $1.0 billion commercial
paper program. Under the CP Program, we may issue unsecured commercial paper notes up to a maximum aggregate amount of $3.9 bhillion,
supported by amounts available under the 2022 Credit Agreement and the 2023 Credit Agreement.

The commercial paper notes are sold at par less a discount representing an interest factor or, if interest bearing, at par, and the maturities
vary but may not exceed 397 days from the date of issue. The commercial paper notes will rank at least pari passu with all other unsecured and
unsubordinated indebtedness.

At September 29, 2023, we had $2.0 billion in outstanding notes under our CP Program, primarily consisting of amounts used to repay
$2.1 billion outstanding under the 2023 Credit Agreement and is included as a component of the “Short-term debt” line item in our Condensed
Consolidated Balance Sheet. The outstanding notes have a weighted-average interest rate of 5.50% and mature at various dates, primarily in
October 2023.

Proceeds from issuance of commercial paper with maturities greater than 90 days were $701 million during the quarter and three quarters
ended September 29, 2023. There were no repayments of commercial paper with maturities greater than 90 days during the quarter and three
quarters ended September 29, 2023. During the quarter and three quarters ended September 30, 2022, we had no commercial paper
borrowings with original maturities more than 90 days from the date of issuance.
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(Unaudited)

NOTE I: PENSION AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The following tables provide the components of our net periodic benefit income for our defined benefit plans, including defined benefit

pension plans and other postretirement defined benefit plans:

(In millions)

Net periodic benefit income

Operating
Service cost

Non-operating
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Amortization of net actuarial gain
Amortization of prior service (credit) cost

Non-service cost periodic benefit income
Net periodic benefit income

(In millions)

Net periodic benefit income
Operating
Service cost
Non-operating
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Amortization of net actuarial loss (gain)
Amortization of prior service (credit) cost
Non-service cost periodic benefit income
Net periodic benefit income

Quarter Ended September 29, 2023

Three Quarters Ended September 29, 2023

Pension Other Benefits Pension Other Benefits
$ 10 $ — 3 22 3 1
100 S 283 8
(162) (5) (467) (15)
(2 (5) (7) (15)
) — (20) 1
(71) (7) (211) (22)
$ (61) $ 7 $ (189) $ (20)
Quarter Ended September 30, 2022 Three Quarters Ended September 30, 2022
Pension Other Benefits Pension Other Benefits
$ 10 $ 1 % 32 $ 2
55 1 165 5
(156) (5) (468) (16)
2 @) 7 (©)
(7) — (21) 1
(106) (5) (317) (15)
$ (96) $ ) $ (285) $ (13)

The service cost component of net periodic benefit income is included in the “Cost of product sales and services” and “Engineering, selling
and administrative expenses” line items in our Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations. The non-service cost components of net
periodic benefit income are included in the “Non-operating income, net” line item in our Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations.

NOTE J: EARNINGS PER SHARE

Net income per common share attributable to L3Harris common shareholders (“EPS”) is computed by dividing earnings to L3Harris
common shareholders less earnings allocated to participating securities, if applicable, by the weighted-average number of common shares
outstanding for the period. Net income per diluted common share attributable to L3Harris common shareholders (“diluted EPS”) incorporates
potential dilutive common shares, primarily consisting of employee stock options and restricted and performance share unit awards, into the

weighted-average number of common shares outstanding.
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The weighted-average number of common shares outstanding used to compute basic and diluted EPS are as follows:

Quarter Ended Three Quarters Ended
(In millions) September 29, 2023 September 30, 2022 September 29, 2023 September 30, 2022
Basic weighted-average common shares outstanding 189.3 191.3 189.6 192.2
Impact of dilutive share-based awards 0.8 — 1.0 1.8
Diluted weighted-average common shares outstanding 190.1 191.3 190.6 194.0

The antidilutive impact excluded from diluted EPS for the quarter ended September 29, 2023 was immaterial. Diluted EPS excludes the
antidilutive impact of 2.0 million weighted-average share-based awards outstanding for the three quarters ended September 29, 2023 and 1.9
million and 0.3 million weighted-average share-based awards outstanding for the quarter and three quarters ended September 30, 2022,
respectively.

NOTE K: INCOME TAXES

Our effective tax rate was 4.5% for the quarter ended September 29, 2023 compared with 6.2% for the quarter ended September 30, 2022.
For the quarter ended September 29, 2023, our effective tax rate benefited from the favorable impacts of R&D credits, foreign-derived intangible
income (“FDII") deductions and the resolution of specific audit uncertainties. For the quarter ended September 30, 2022, our effective tax rate
benefited from the favorable impact of R&D credits, incremental FDII and the release of a valuation allowance in a foreign jurisdiction resulting
from an internal restructuring, partially offset by the unfavorable impact of non-deductible goodwill impairments.

Our effective tax rate was 6.4% for the three quarters ended September 29, 2023 compared with 13.0% for the three quarters ended
September 30, 2022. For the three quarters ended September 29, 2023, our effective tax rate benefited from the favorable impacts of R&D
credits, FDII deductions and the resolution of specific audit uncertainties. For the three quarters ended September 30, 2022, our effective tax
rate was favorably impacted by a reduction in the deferred tax liabilities on the outside basis of certain foreign subsidiaries due to an internal
restructuring, the favorable impact of excess tax benefits related to equity-based compensation and the items described above in this Note for
the quarter ended September 30, 2022.

NOTE L: FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received from the sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in the principal market (or
most advantageous market, in the absence of a principal market) for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. Entities are required to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs in
measuring fair value and to utilize a three-level fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value. The three levels of
inputs used to measure fair value are as follows:

» Level 1 — Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

e Level 2 — Observable inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1, including quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in
active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active; and inputs other than quoted
prices that are observable or are derived principally from, or corroborated by, observable market data by correlation or other means.

» Level 3— Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity, are significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities
and reflect our own assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability developed using
the best information available in the circumstances.

In certain instances, fair value is estimated using quoted market prices obtained from external pricing services. In obtaining such data from
the external pricing services, we have evaluated the methodologies used to develop the estimate of fair value in order to assess whether such
valuations are representative of fair value, including net asset value (“NAV”). Additionally, in certain circumstances, the NAV reported by an
asset manager may be adjusted when sufficient evidence indicates NAV is not representative of fair value.
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The following table presents assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis (at least annually) at September 29, 2023 and
December 30, 2022:

September 29, 2023 December 30, 2022
(In millions) Total Level 1 Total Level 1
Assets
Deferred compensation plan assets:®
Equity and fixed income securities $ 97 $ 97 $ 64 $ 64
Investments measured at NAV:
Corporate-owned life insurance 36 33
Total fair value of deferred compensation plan assets $ 133 $ 97
Liabilities
Deferred compensation plan liabilities:®
Equity securities and mutual funds $ 14 $ 14 $ 8 $ 8
Investments measured at NAV:
Common/collective trusts and guaranteed investment
contracts 231 192
Total fair value of deferred compensation plan liabilities $ 245 $ 200

(1) Represents diversified assets held in “rabbi trusts” associated with our non-qualified deferred compensation plans, which we include in the “Other current assets” and “Other
non-current assets” line items in our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet, and which are measured at fair value.

(2) Primarily represents obligations to pay benefits under certain non-qualified deferred compensation plans, which we include in the “Compensation and benefits” and “Other
long-term liabilities” line items in our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet. Under these plans, participants designate investment options (including stock and fixed-income
funds), which serve as the basis for measurement of the notional value of their accounts.

The following table presents the carrying amounts and estimated fair values of long-term debt that is not carried at fair value in our
Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet:

September 29, 2023 December 30, 2022
(In millions) Carrying Amount Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value
Term Loan 2025® $ 2,250 $ 2,250 $ — % —
All other long-term debt, net (including current portion)® 9,253 8,667 7,043 6,569
Total debt, net $ 11,503 $ 10,917 $ 7,043 $ 6,569

(1) The carrying value of Term Loan 2025 approximates fair value due to its variable interest rate.
(2) The fair value was estimated using a market approach based on quoted market prices for our debt traded in the secondary market. If measured at fair value, it would be
categorized in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

The fair value of our short-term debt approximates the carrying value due to its short-term nature, with commercial paper classified as level
2 and other short-term debt classified as level 3 within the fair value hierarchy.

See Note G: Gooawill and Other Intangible Assets and Note B: Acquisitions, Divestitures and Asset Sales in these Notes and Note 4:
Business Divestitures and Asset Sales in our Fiscal 2022 Form 10-K for additional information regarding fair value measurements associated
with goodwill.
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NOTE M: CHANGES IN ESTIMATES

Many of our contracts utilize the POC cost-to-cost method of revenue recognition. A single estimated profit margin is used to recognize
profit for each performance obligation over its period of performance. At the outset of each contract, we gauge its complexity and perceived
risks and establish an estimated total cost at completion. Due to the long-term nature of many of these contracts, developing these estimates
often requires judgment. After establishing the estimated total cost at completion, we follow a standard Estimate at Completion (“EAC”) process
in which we review the progress and performance on our ongoing contracts at least quarterly and, in many cases, more frequently. As the
contracts progress, we may successfully retire risks or complexities and may add additional risks, and we adjust our estimated total cost at
completion. For additional discussion of our revenue recognition policies and our EAC process, see “Critical Accounting Estimates” in Part Il:
Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in our Fiscal 2022 Form 10K.

Net EAC adjustments had the following impact to earnings for the periods presented:

Quarter Ended Three Quarters Ended
(In millions, except per share amounts) September 29, 2023 September 30, 2022 September 29, 2023 September 30, 2022
Net EAC adjustments, before income taxes® $ (10) $ — 3 97) $ 58
Net EAC adjustments, net of income taxes (8) — (73) 44
Net EAC adjustments, net of income taxes, per diluted share (0.04) — (0.38) 0.23

(1) For the three quarters ended September 29, 2023 excludes charges of $48 million related to impairments of customer contracts that are included in the “Revenue from product
sales and services” and “Impairment of goodwill and other assets” line items in our Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations.
Revenue recognized from performance obligations satisfied in prior periods was $28 million and $97 million for the quarter and three
quarters ended September 29, 2023, respectively, and $23 million and $113 million for the quarter and three quarters ended September 30,
2022, respectively.

NOTE N: BACKLOG

Backlog, which is the equivalent of our remaining performance obligations, represents the future revenue we expect to recognize as we
perform on our current contracts. Backlog comprises both funded backlog (i.e., firm orders for which funding is authorized and appropriated)
and unfunded backlog. Backlog excludes unexercised contract options and potential orders under ordering-type contracts, such as indefinite
delivery, indefinite quantity contracts.

At September 29, 2023, our ending backlog was $31.8 billion. We expect to recognize approximately 55% of the revenue associated with
this backlog by the end of 2024 and approximately 80% by the end of 2025, with the remainder to be recognized thereafter. At December 30,
2022, our ending backlog was $22.3 billion.

NOTE O: BUSINESS SEGMENT INFORMATION

We structure our operations primarily around the products, systems and services we sell and the markets we serve and report our financial
results in the following four reportable segments:

* SAS: including space payloads, sensors and full-mission solutions; classified intelligence and cyber; avionics; electronic warfare; and
mission networks for air traffic management operations;

* IMS: including multi-mission intelligence, surveillance and reconnaissance (“ISR”) systems; integrated electrical and electronic systems
for maritime platforms; advanced electro-optical and infrared solutions; fuzing and ordnance systems; commercial aviation products;
and commercial pilot training operations;

* CS:including tactical communications with global communications solutions; broadband communications; tactical data links; integrated
vision solutions; and public safety radios, and system applications and equipment; and

* AR:including missile solutions with technologies for strategic defense, missile defense, and hypersonic and tactical systems; and space
propulsion and power systems for national security space and exploration missions.

Business Realignment. Effective December 31, 2022, we adjusted our reporting to better align our businesses and transferred our ADG
business from our IMS segment to our SAS segment. See Note A: Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies in the
Notes for further information.

Acquisition of TDL. On January 3, 2023, we completed the acquisition of TDL, which is reported within our CS segment. See Note B:
Acquisitions, Divestitures and Asset Sales in these Notes for additional information regarding our acquisition of TDL.

Acquisition of AJRD and New Business Segment. On July 28, 2023, we completed the acquisition of AJRD. Upon completion of the
acquisition, we established a new reportable segment, AR. See Note B: Acquisitions, Divestitures and Asset Sales in these Notes for additional
information regarding our acquisition of AJRD.

Business Segment Financial Information

Segment revenue, segment operating income (loss) and a reconciliation of segment operating income (loss) to total income (loss) before
income taxes are as follows:



Quarter Ended Three Quarters Ended

(In millions) September 29, 2023 September 30, 2022 September 29, 2023 September 30, 2022
Revenue from Product Sales and Services
SAS $ 1,686 $ 1593 $ 5,056 $ 4,682
IMS 1,568 1,630 5,003 4,897
CS 1,255 1,068 3,707 3,024
AR 455 *x 455 xx
Corporate eliminations (49) (45) (142) (119)
Total revenue from product sales and services $ 4915 $ 4246 $ 14,079 $ 12,484

Income (loss) before Income Taxes
Segment operating income (loss):

SAS® $ 210 $ 922 $ 565 $ 472
IMS® 187 (143) 534 315
@S 282 (97) 873 370
AR 56 * 56 ki
Total segment operating income (loss) 735 (148) 2,028 1,157

Unallocated Items:

Unallocated corporate department (expense) income, net® 14 18 (27) 33
Amortization of acquisition-related intangibles® (208) (151) (546) (454)
Additional cost of sales related to the fair value step-up in
inventory sold — — (30) —
Merger, acquisition, and divestiture related expenses (56) (31) (144) (117)
Sale of asset group and business divestiture-related gains,
net — — 26 8
Impairment of goodwill and other assets® — — (39) —
LHX NeXt® (33) — (68) —
Charges for severance and other termination costs = (29) = (29)
Charge related to an additional pre-merger legal contingency — (31) — (31)
FAS/CAS operating adjustment(® 27 22 72 65
Total unallocated items (256) (202) (756) (525)
Non-operating income, net 80 99 245 313
Interest expense, net (159) (70) (372) (205)
Income (loss) before income taxes $ 400 $ (321) $ 1,145 $ 740

** AR is a new reportable segment established during the quarter ended September 29, 2023, which consists of operations of AJRD. As such, there is no comparable prior year
information.

(1) For the three quarters ended September 29, 2023, includes non-cash charges for impairment of other assets of $27 million and $12 million for SAS and IMS, respectively,
related to restructuring of a customer contract impacting both segments and facility closures in IMS.

(2) Includes certain corporate-level expenses that are not included in management’s evaluation of any segment’s operating performance.

(3) Includes amortization of identifiable intangible assets acquired in connection with business combinations. Because our acquisitions benefited the entire Company, the
amortization of identifiable intangible assets acquired was not allocated to any segment.

(4) For the three quarters ended September 29, 2023, includes a $21 million non-cash charge for impairment of intangible assets related to the closure of a facility and an $18
million charge related to an impairment of a customer contract. See Note G: Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets in these Notes for additional information regarding
impairment of intangible assets.

(5) Costs associated with transforming multiple functions, systems and processes to increase agility and competitiveness, including third-party consulting, workforce optimization
and incremental information technology (“IT”) expenses for implementation of new systems.

(6) Represents the difference between the service cost component of Financial Accounting Standards (“FAS”) pension and other postretirement benefits (‘OPEB”) cost and total
U.S. Government Cost Accounting Standards (“CAS”) pension and OPEB cost and replaces the “Pension adjustment” line item previously presented, which included the non-
service components of FAS pension and OPEB income. See FAS/CAS operating adjustment table below.

FASICAS Pension Operating Adjustment

In accordance with CAS, we allocate a portion of pension and OPEB plan costs to our U.S. Government contracts. However, our
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements require pension and OPEB plan income or expense to be calculated in accordance with FAS
requirements under GAAP. The “FAS/CAS operating adjustment” line item in the table below represents the difference between the service cost
component of FAS pension and OPEB cost and total CAS pension and OPEB cost. The non-service cost components of FAS pension and
OPEB income or expense are included as component of the “Non-operating income, net” line item in our Condensed Consolidated Statement of
Operations. See Note I: Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans in these Notes for more information on the composition of non-service
cost components of FAS pension and OPEB income and expense.

The table below is a reconciliation of the FAS/CAS operating adjustment:



Quarter Ended Three Quarters Ended

(In millions) September 29, 2023 September 30, 2022 September 29, 2023 September 30, 2022
FAS pension service cost $ (10) $ (11) $ (23) $ (34)
Less: CAS pension cost (37) (33) (95) (99)

FAS/CAS operating adjustment 27 22 72 65

Non-service FAS pension income 78 111 232 332

FAS/CAS pension adjustment, net $ 105 $ 133 $ 304 $ 397

Disaggregation of Revenue

We disaggregate revenue for all four business segments by customer relationship, contract type and geographical region. We believe these
categories best depict how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected by economic factors.

Quarter Ended

September 29, 2023 September 30, 2022

(In millions) SAS IMS cs AR SAS IMS cs AR
Revenue By Customer Relationship

Prime contractor $ 1,082 $ 962 $ 866 $ 113 $ 1,013 $ 1,089 $ 690 i

Subcontractor 592 585 374 342 565 525 364 i

Intersegment 12 21 15 — 15 16 14 *x
Total revenue $ 1,686 $ 1568 $ 1,255 $ 455 $ 1593 $ 1630 $ 1,068 &5
Revenue By Contract Type

Fixed-price® $ 1,040 $ 1,164 $ 1,047 $ 272 $ 939 % 1,246 $ 899 ox

Cost-reimbursable 634 383 193 183 639 368 155 *

Intersegment 12 21 15 — 15 16 14 **
Total revenue $ 1,686 $ 1,568 $ 1,255 $ 455 $ 1593 $ 1,630 $ 1,068 i
Revenue By Geographical Region

United States $ 1,478 $ 1,141 $ 874 % 443 $ 1,414 % 1,213 % 706 ki

International 196 406 366 12 164 401 348 i

Intersegment 12 21 15 — 15 16 14 *x
Total revenue $ 1,686 $ 1568 $ 1,255 $ 455 $ 1593 $ 1630 $ 1,068 b

Three Quarters Ended

September 29, 2023 September 30, 2022

(In millions) SAS IMS cs AR SAS IMS cs AR
Revenue By Customer Relationship

Prime contractor $ 3,176 % 3,243 $ 2,471 $ 113 $ 2,977 % 3,210 $ 2,037 *

Subcontractor 1,845 1,694 1,196 342 1,669 1,636 954 *

Intersegment 35 66 40 — 36 51 33 *x
Total revenue $ 5,056 $ 5,003 $ 3,707 $ 455 $ 4682 $ 4897 $ 3,024 Kk
Revenue By Contract Type

Fixed-price® $ 3,161 $ 3,767 $ 3,127  $ 272 $ 2,737 % 3,716 $ 2,530 *

Cost-reimbursable 1,860 1,170 540 183 1,909 1,130 461 *

Intersegment 35 66 40 — 36 51 33 *x
Total revenue $ 5056 $ 5,003 $ 3,707 $ 455 $ 4,682 $ 4897 $ 3,024 fd
Revenue By Geographical Region

United States $ 4,407 $ 3,679 $ 2,499 $ 443 $ 4,136 $ 3549 $ 1,962 i

International 614 1,258 1,168 12 510 1,297 1,029 *

Intersegment 35 66 40 — 36 51 33 *x
Total revenue $ 5,056 $ 5,003 $ 3,707 $ 455 $ 4,682 $ 4,897 $ 3,024 *

** AR is a new reportable segment established during the quarter ended September 29, 2023, which consists of operations of AJRD. As such, there is no comparable prior year
information.
(1) Includes revenue derived from time-and-materials contracts.

Assets by Business Segment

Total assets by business segment are as follows:



(In millions) September 29, 2023 December 30, 2022

Total Assets

SAS $ 9,099 $ 8,838
IMS 10,869 10,925
Cs 7,184 5,800
AR 4,078 o
Corporate® 11,063 7,961
Total Assets $ 42,293 $ 33,524

** AR is a new reportable segment established during the quarter ended September 29, 2023, which consists of operations of AJRD. As such, there is no comparable prior year
information.

(1) Identifiable intangible assets acquired in connection with business combinations were recorded as corporate assets because they benefited the entire Company. Identifiable
intangible asset balances recorded as corporate assets were $9.1 billion and $6.0 billion at September 29, 2023 and December 30, 2022, respectively. Corporate assets also
consisted of cash, income taxes receivable, deferred income taxes, deferred compensation plan investments, buildings and equipment, real estate held for development and
leasing, as well as any assets of businesses held for sale.
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NOTE P: LEGAL PROCEEDINGS AND CONTINGENCIES

In the ordinary course of business, we are routinely defendants in, parties to or otherwise subject to many pending and threatened legal
actions, claims, disputes, arbitration and other legal proceedings incident to our business, arising from or related matters, including but not
limited to: product liability; personal injury; patents, trademarks, trade secrets or other intellectual property; labor and employment disputes;
commercial or contractual disputes; strategic acquisitions or divestitures; the prior sale or use of former products allegedly containing asbestos
or other restricted materials; breach of warranty; and environmental matters. Claimed amounts against us may be substantial, but may not bear
any reasonable relationship to the merits of the claim or the extent of any real risk of court or arbitration awards. We accrue contingencies
based on a range of possible outcomes. We record accruals for losses related to those matters against us that we consider to be probable and
that can be reasonably estimated. Gain contingencies, if any, are recognized when they are realized and legal costs generally are expensed
when incurred. At September 29, 2023, our accrual for the potential resolution of lawsuits, claims, or proceedings that we consider probable of
being decided unfavorably to us was not material. Although it is not feasible to predict the outcome of these matters with certainty, it is
reasonably possible that some lawsuits, claims or proceedings may be disposed of or decided unfavorably to us and in excess of the amounts
currently accrued. Based on available information, in the opinion of management, settlements, arbitration awards and final judgments, if any,
that are considered probable of being rendered against us in litigation or arbitration in existence at September 29, 2023 are reserved against or
would not have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations, cash flows or equity.

Environmental Matters

We are subject to numerous U.S. Federal, state, local and international environmental laws and regulatory requirements and are involved
from time to time in investigations or litigation of various potential environmental issues. We or companies we have acquired, including AJRD,
are responsible, or alleged to be responsible, for environmental investigation and/or remediation of multiple sites, including sites owned by us
and third party sites. These sites are in various stages of investigation and/or remediation, and in some cases our liability is considered de
minimis. Notices from the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”) or equivalent state or international environmental agencies allege that
several sites formerly or currently owned and/or operated by us or companies we have acquired, and other properties or water supplies that
may be or have been impacted from those operations, contain disposed or recycled materials or wastes and require environmental investigation
and/or remediation. These sites include instances of being identified as a potentially responsible party (“PRP”) under the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act (commonly known as the “Superfund Act”), the Resource Conservation Recovery Act
and/or equivalent state and international laws, and in some instances, our liability and proportionate share of costs that may be shared among
other PRPs have not been determined largely due to uncertainties as to the nature and extent of site conditions and our involvement.

In conjunction with the acquisition of AJRD in the quarter ended September 29, 2023 we recognized $469 million of reserves for
environmental remediation costs related to approximately 40 environmental matters associated with AJRD’s current and former facilities. The
current and non-current portion of the reserves are included as a component of the “Other accrued items” and “Reserves for environmental
remediation costs” line items, respectively, in our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet. Some of these environmental costs are eligible for
future recovery in the pricing of our products and services to the U.S. government and under existing third party agreements. We consider the
recovery probable based on U.S. government contracting regulations and existing third party agreements. We recognized $433 million for the
recoverable portion of these reserves. The current and non-current portion of the recoverable costs are included as a component of the “Other
current assets” and “Recoverable environmental remediation costs” line items, respectively, in in our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet.
Our preliminary estimates and assumptions are subject to change as we obtain additional information during the measurement period (up to
one year from the acquisition date); therefore, these provisional measurements of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed are subject to
change.
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The largest acquired environmental matter is the Sacramento, California site. AJRD is subject to a Partial Consent Decree (“PCD”) related
to this site which requires us, among other things, to conduct a Remedial Investigation and Feasibility Study to determine the nature and extent
of impacts due to the release of chemicals from the Sacramento, California site, monitor the American River and offsite public water supply
wells, operate Groundwater Extraction and Treatment facilities that collect groundwater at the site perimeter, and pay certain government
oversight costs. The PCD required a guarantee up to $75 million (in addition to a prior $20 million guarantee) to assure that the Sacramento
remediation activities are fully funded. Obligations under the $75 million aggregate guarantee are limited to $10 million in any year. Both the
$75 million aggregate guarantee and the $10 million annual limitation are subject to adjustment annually for inflation. As of September 29, 2023,
the estimated range of anticipated costs for the Sacramento, California site related to the PCD and other federal and state orders was
$239 million to $372 million and the accrued amount was $239 million included as a component of the “Other accrued items” and “Reserves for
environmental remediation costs” line item in in our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of L3Harris Technologies, Inc.

Results of Review of Interim Financial Statements

We have reviewed the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheet of L3Harris Technologies, Inc. and subsidiaries (the
Company) as of September 29, 2023, the related condensed consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income and equity for the
quarter and three quarters ended September 29, 2023 and September 30, 2022, the condensed consolidated statements of cash flows for the
three quarters ended September 29, 2023 and September 30, 2022 and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “condensed
consolidated interim financial statements”). Based on our reviews, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the
condensed consolidated interim financial statements for them to be in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We have previously audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(“PCAOB"), the consolidated balance sheet of the Company as of December 30, 2022, the related consolidated statements of operations,
comprehensive income, cash flows and equity for the year then ended, and the related notes (not presented herein); and in our report dated
February 24, 2023, we expressed an unqualified audit opinion on those consolidated financial statements. In our opinion, the information set
forth in the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheet as of December 30, 2022, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation
to the consolidated balance sheet from which it has been derived.

Basis for Review Results

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. We are a public accounting firm registered with the
PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable
rules and regulations of the SEC and the PCAOB. We conducted our review in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. A review of
interim financial statements consists principally of applying analytical procedures and making inquiries of persons responsible for financial and
accounting matters. It is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB, the objective of
which is the expression of an opinion regarding the financial statements taken as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Orlando, Florida
October 27, 2023
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) is intended to assist in an understanding of our financial condition and
results of operations. This MD&A is provided as a supplement to, should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified in its entirety by reference
to, our Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements and accompanying Notes. In addition, reference should be made to our audited
Consolidated Financial Statements and accompanying Notes to our Consolidated Financial Statements and Part II: Item 7. Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in our Fiscal 2022 Form 10-K. Except for the historical information
contained herein, the discussions in this MD&A contain forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Our future results could
differ materially from those discussed herein. Factors that could cause or contribute to such differences include, but are not limited to, those
discussed below in this MD&A under “Forward-Looking Statements and Factors that May Affect Future Results.”

OVERVIEW

We are the Trusted Disruptor for the global aerospace and defense industry. With customers’ mission-critical needs in mind, we deliver end-
to-end technology solutions connecting the space, air, land, sea, missiles and munitions and cyber domains. We support government and
commercial customers in more than 100 countries, with our largest customers being various departments and agencies of the U.S. Government
and their prime contractors. Our products and services have defense and civil government applications, as well as commercial applications. We
generally sell directly to our customers, and we utilize agents and intermediaries to sell and market some products and services, especially in
international markets.

U.S. and International Budget Environment

Our largest customers are various departments and agencies of the U.S. Government — the percentage of our revenue that was derived
from sales to U.S. Government customers, including foreign military sales funded through the U.S. Government, whether directly or through
prime contractors, was 75% for the three quarters ended September 29, 2023.

On December 29, 2022, the President signed the National Defense Authorization Act, providing $858 billion of national defense funding for
the 2023 U.S. Government fiscal year (“GFY”), of which $816 billion was allotted to the DoD. On March 13, 2023, the DoD released details
around the President’'s GFY 2024 $886 billion national defense budget request (“2024 PBR”). The PBR includes $842 billion for the DoD, a
proposed increase of approximately 3% over the enacted GFY 2023 DoD budget. Many of our offerings funded in the enacted GFY 2023 DoD
budget are also supported by the 2024 PBR, including responsive satellites, ISR aircraft, tactical communications and maritime solutions.

On June 3, 2023, the President signed the Fiscal Responsibility Act of 2023 (“FRA”), which suspended the federal debt limit through
January 1, 2025 and established new discretionary funding limits for defense and non-defense accounts. The FRA capped GFY 2024 national
defense funding at $886 billion, including $842 billion for the DoD specifically, and non-defense funding at $704 billion.

On September 30, 2023, the President signed a short-term Continuing Resolution (“CR”"), funding the government for 48 days through
November 17, 2023. Congress has until November 17th to enact a full-year GFY 2024 appropriations bill or another CR to fund the government.
While operating under a CR, government agencies are allocated a portion of GFY 2023 enacted funds, and DoD is prohibited from starting new
programs.

The overall defense spending environment, both in the U.S. and internationally, reflects the continued impacts of the conflicts in Ukraine
and geopolitical tensions across Asia and the Middle East, and changes to U.S. Government or international spending priorities have and could
in the future impact our business.

See our U.S. Government funding risks and the discussion of our international business risks within Part I: Item 1A. Risk Factors in our
Fiscal 2022 Form 10-K.
Economic Environment

The macroeconomic environment continues to present challenges, which have impacted our actual results and may continue to impact our
future results. Rising inflation in the U.S. has led to higher input costs. The ongoing uncertainty related to the impacts of inflation, as well as
increased interest rates, raise the cost of borrowing for the Federal government.
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To the extent feasible, we continue to proactively deploy operational improvement strategies and have consistently followed the practice of
adjusting our prices to reflect the impact of inflation on salaries and fringe benefits for employees and the cost of purchased materials and
services. Our fixed-price contracts could subject us to losses in the event of cost overruns or a significant increase in or a sustained period of
increased inflation.

KEY DEVELOPMENTS

Business Realignment. Effective for fiscal 2023, we adjusted our reporting to better align our businesses and transferred our ADG business
(representing $76 million and $233 million of revenue for the quarter and three quarters ended September 29, 2023, respectively, and $93
million and $240 million of revenue for the quarter and three quarters ended September 30, 2022, respectively) from our IMS segment to our
SAS segment. See Note A: Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies in the Notes for further information.

Acquisition of TDL. On January 3, 2023, we completed the TDL acquisition, which is reported within our CS segment. See Note B:
Acquisitions, Divestitures and Asset Sales in the Notes for further information regarding the TDL acquisition.

Acquisition of AJRD and New Business Segment. On July 28, 2023 we completed the acquisition of AJRD. Upon completion of the
acquisition, we established a new reportable segment, AR. The operations of AJRD are reported in the newly established AR segment and in
our corporate segment. The AR segment consists of missile solutions with technologies for strategic defense, missile defense, and hypersonic
and tactical systems, as well as space propulsion and power systems for national security space and exploration missions.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Consolidated Results of Operations

(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts)

Revenue from product sales and services:
SAS
IMS
Cs
AR
Corporate eliminations
Revenue from product sales and services
Cost of product sales and services
% of total revenue
Gross margin
% of total revenue
Engineering, selling and administrative expenses
% of total revenue
Sale of asset group and business divestiture-related gains, net
Impairment of goodwill and other assets
Non-operating income, net
Interest expense, net
Income (loss) before income taxes
Income taxes
Effective tax rate
Net income (loss)
Noncontrolling interests, net of income taxes
Net income (loss) attributable to L3Harris Technologies, Inc.

% of total revenue
Diluted EPS

Quarter Ended

Three Quarters Ended

September 29, 2023 September 30,2022 September 29, 2023 September 30, 2022

$ 1,686 $ 1,593 $ 5056 $ 4,682
1,568 1,630 5,003 4,897
1,255 1,068 3,707 3,024
455 *x 455 *x
(49) (45) (142) (119)
4,915 4,246 14,079 12,484
(3,608) (3,052) (10,371) (8,819)
73 % 72 % 74 % 71 %
1,307 1,194 3,708 3,665
27 % 28 % 26 % 29 %
(828) (742) (2,384) (2,239)
17 % 17 % 17 % 18 %
— — 26 8
— (802) (78) (802)
80 99 245 313
(159) (70) (372) (205)
400 (321) 1,145 740
(18) 20 (73) (96)
4.5 % 6.2 % 6.4 % 13.0 %
382 (301) 1,072 644
1 1 ©) 2
$ 383 $ (300) $ 1,069 $ 646
8% 7 % 8 % 5%
$ 202 $ (156) $ 561 $ 3.33

** AR is a new reportable segment established during the quarter ended September 29, 2023, which consists of operations of AJRD. As such, there is no comparable prior year

information.

Revenue and Gross Margin

One Quarter Comparison. Revenue increased 16% for the quarter ended September 29, 2023 compared with the quarter ended

September 30, 2022 from the inclusion of revenue from the acquisition of AJRD, which is reported in our AR segment and higher revenue in our
CS and SAS segments of $187 million and $93 million, respectively, partially offset by decrease in revenue in our IMS segment of $62 million.

Gross margin increased while gross margin as a percentage of revenue decreased for the quarter ended September 29, 2023 compared

with the quarter ended September 30, 2022, largely due to the increases in revenue noted above, partially offset by net change in EAC

adjustments and higher mix of lower-margin revenue.

Three Quarters Comparison. Revenue increased 13% for the three quarters ended September 29, 2023 compared with the three quarters
ended September 30, 2022 from the inclusion of revenue from the acquisition of AJRD, which is reported in our AR segment and higher
revenue across our CS, SAS and IMS segments of $683 million, $374 million and $106 million, respectively.
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Gross margin increased while gross margin as a percentage of revenue decreased for the three quarters ended September 29, 2023
compared with the three quarters ended September 30, 2022, largely due to the increases in revenue noted above, partially offset by net

change in EAC adjustments and higher mix of lower-margin revenue.

See the “Discussion of Business Segment Results of Operations” discussion below in this MD&A for further information.

Engineering, Selling and Administrative Expenses

Engineering, selling and administrative expenses (“ESA”) expenses were as follows:

Quarter Ended

Three Quarters Ended

(In millions) September 29, 2023 September 30, 2022 September 29, 2023 September 30, 2022
Amortization of acquisition-related intangibles $ (185) $ (133) $ 477) $ (400)
Company-sponsored R&D costs® (125) (151) (356) (452)
Merger, acquisition, and divestiture related expenses (56) (31) (144) (117)
LHX NeXt® (33) — (68) —
Charges for severance and other termination costs = (29) = (29)
Charge related to an additional pre-merger legal contingency — (31) — (31)
Other ESA expenses® (429) (367) (1,339) (1,210)

Total ESA expenses $ (828) $ (742) $ (2,384) $ (2,239)

(1) For the quarter and three quarters ended September 29, 2023, includes approximately $9 million of Company-sponsored R&D costs associated with our new AR segment.
(2) Costs associated with transforming multiple functions, systems and processes to increase agility and competitiveness, including third-party consulting, workforce optimization

and incremental IT expenses for implementation of new systems.

(3) Other ESA expenses primarily includes unallocated corporate expense, and segment ESA expense. For the quarter and three quarters ended September 29, 2023, Other ESA
includes approximately $25 million of expenses in our new AR segment and Other ESA expenses in our SAS, IMS and CS segments either decreased or remained consistent
as a percentage of the respective segment’s revenue compared to the quarter and three quarters ended September 30, 2022.

Sale of Asset Group and Business Divestiture-Related Gains, net

One Quarter Comparison. There were no sales of asset groups or business divestiture-related gains or losses for the quarter ended

September 29, 2023 or the quarter ended September 30, 2022.

Three Quarters Comparison. For the three quarters ended September 29, 2023, the pre-tax gain associated with the divestiture of VIS was
$26 million. For the three quarters ended September 30, 2022, we completed one business divestiture and one asset sale from our IMS

segment for a pre-tax gain of $8 million.

See Note B: Acquisitions, Divestitures and Asset Sales in the Notes for further information.

Impairment of Goodwill and Other Assets

One Quarter Comparison. There were no impairments of goodwill and other assets for the quarter ended September 29, 2023. For the
quarter ended September 30, 2022 goodwill and other assets includes non-cash impairment charges for goodwill of $355 million, $313 million
and $134 million associated with our Broadband, ADG and Electro Optical reporting units, respectively.

In conjunction with our 2023 business realignment, certain businesses within our ADG reporting unit were aligned with our Electro Optical
and SAS reporting units. As such, fiscal 2022 impairment charges related to ADG and Electro Optical of $367 million and $80 million, are
included in our Electro Optical and SAS reporting units, respectively, in our comparative financial results for the quarter and three quarters

ended September 30, 2022.
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Three Quarters Comparison. For the three quarters ended September 29, 2023 impairment of goodwill and other assets consisted of the
following non-cash charges for impairment of other assets:
Three Quarters Ended

(In millions) September 29, 2023
Other Assets
Impairment of customer contracts:
SAS $ 27
IMS 3
Unallocated corporate expense 18
48
Facility closures:
IMS 9
Unallocated corporate expense 21
Impairment of other assets $ 78

For the three quarters ended September 30, 2022 goodwill and other assets includes non-cash impairment charges for goodwill of $355
million, $313 million and $134 million associated with our Broadband, ADG and Electro Optical reporting units, respectively. As noted above in
one quarter comparison discussion, in conjunction with our 2023 business realignment, certain businesses within our ADG reporting unit were
aligned with our Electro Optical and SAS reporting units and associated impairment charges have been adjusted accordingly within our
comparative financial results for the quarter and three quarters ended September 30, 2022.

Non-Operating Income, Net

Non-operating income, net was as follows:

Quarter Ended Three Quarters Ended
(In millions) September 29, 2023 September 30, 2022 September 29, 2023 September 30, 2022
Non-service FAS pension income® $ 78 $ 11 $ 232 $ 332
Other, net® 2 (12) 13 (19)
Non-operating income, net $ 80 $ 99 $ 245 $ 313

(1) Includes interest cost, expected return on plan assets, amortization of net actuarial gains under our pension and postretirement benefit plans. See Note I: Pension and Other
Postretirement Benefit Plans in the Notes for more information on the composition of non-service cost components of FAS pension and OPEB income and expense.
(2) Other, net primarily includes changes in the market value of our rabbi trust assets, gains and losses on our equity investments in nonconsolidated affiliates and royalty income.

Interest Expense, Net

One Quarter Comparison. Interest expense, net increased for the quarter ended September 29, 2023 compared with the quarter ended
September 30, 2022 primarily due to interest expense of approximately $35 million on the $2.25 billion outstanding under our variable rate Term
Loan 2025, a $28 million increase in interest expense on outstanding notes under the CP Program and interest expense on the AJRD Notes
during the quarter ended September 29, 2023.

Three Quarters Comparison. Interest expense, net increased for the three quarters ended September 29, 2023 compared with the three
quarters ended September 30, 2022 primarily due interest expense of approximately $100 million on the $2.25 billion outstanding under our
variable rate Term Loan 2025 and a $38 million increase in interest expense on outstanding notes under the CP Program during the three
quarters ended September 29, 2023.

See Note H: Debt and Credit Arrangements in the Notes for further information.
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Income Taxes

One Quarter Comparison. Our effective tax rate was 4.5% for the quarter ended September 29, 2023 compared with 6.2% for the quarter
ended September 30, 2022. For the quarter ended September 29, 2023, our effective tax rate benefited from the favorable impacts of R&D
credits, FDII deductions and the resolution of specific audit uncertainties. For the quarter ended September 30, 2022, our effective tax rate
benefited from the favorable impact of R&D credits, incremental FDII and the release of a valuation allowance in a foreign jurisdiction resulting
from an internal restructuring, partially offset by the unfavorable impact of non-deductible goodwill impairments.

Three Quarters Comparison. Our effective tax rate was 6.4% for the three quarters ended September 29, 2023 compared with 13.0% for
the three quarters ended September 30, 2022. For the three quarters ended September 29, 2023, our effective tax rate benefited from the
favorable impacts of R&D credits, FDII deductions and the resolution of specific audit uncertainties. For the three quarters ended September 30,
2022, our effective tax rate was favorably impacted by a reduction in the deferred tax liabilities on the outside basis of certain foreign
subsidiaries due to an internal restructuring, the favorable impact of excess tax benefits related to equity-based compensation and the items
described above in the one quarter comparison for income taxes.

Net Income

One Quarter Comparison and Three Quarters Comparison. The increase in net income for the quarter and three quarters ended
September 29, 2023 compared with the quarter and three quarters ended September 30, 2022 was due to the combined effects of reasons
noted in the sections above.

Diluted EPS

Diluted EPS for the quarter and three quarters ended September 29, 2023 increased compared with the quarter and three quarters ended
September 30, 2022 due to higher net income and fewer diluted weighted average common shares outstanding, primarily reflecting the
repurchases of our common stock under our share repurchase program during the three quarters ended September 29, 2023 and fiscal 2022
share repurchases subsequent to September 30, 2022.

See the “Common Stock Repurchases” discussion below in this MD&A for further information.

Discussion of Business Segment Results of Operations

SAS Segment
Quarter Ended Three Quarters Ended
September 29, September 30, September 29, September 30,
2023 2022 % Incl(Dec) 2023 2022 % Incl(Dec)
Revenue $ 1,686 $ 1,593 6% $ 5,056 $ 4,682 8 %
Operating income 210 92 128 % 565 472 20 %
Operating income as a
percentage of revenue
(“operating margin”) 12 % 6 % 11 % 10 %

* Not meaningful

One Quarter Comparison. The increase in SAS segment revenue for the quarter ended September 29, 2023 compared with the quarter
ended September 30, 2022 was primarily due to higher revenue of $105 million from program growth in Mission Networks and our Space and
Intelligence businesses, inclusive of an $18 million non-recurring license sale in Space Systems, partially offset by a decline in legacy airborne
platform volume.

The increase in SAS segment operating income for the quarter ended September 29, 2023 compared with the quarter ended September
30, 2022 was primarily due to an $80 million non-cash charge for impairment of goodwill recorded in our legacy ADG reporting unit during the
quarter ended September 30, 2022, in addition to lower R&D and ESA expenses, and favorable mix in Space Systems primarily due to a non-
recurring license sale during the quarter ended September 29, 2023.
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Three Quarters Comparison. The increase in SAS segment revenue for the three quarters ended September 29, 2023 compared with the
three quarters ended September 30, 2022 was primarily due to higher revenue of $367 million from program growth in Mission Networks and
our Space and Intelligence businesses, inclusive of an $18 million non-recurring license sale in Space Systems and $68 million in Mission
Avionics from an increase in production revenues. Such increases were partially offset by a decline in legacy airborne platform volume.

The increase in SAS segment operating income for the three quarters ended September 29, 2023 compared with the three quarters ended
September 30, 2022 was primarily due to an $80 million non-cash charge for impairment of goodwill recorded in our legacy ADG reporting unit
during the three quarters ended September 30, 2022, in addition to lower R&D and ESA expenses and favorable mix in Space Systems due to
a non-recurring license sale, partially offset by a $27 million non-cash impairment of other assets related to restructuring of a customer contract
during the three quarters ended September 29, 2023 and program execution.

IMS Segment
Quarter Ended Three Quarters Ended
September 29, September 30, September 29, September 30,
(Dollars in millions) 2023 2022 % Incl(Dec) 2023 2022 % Incl(Dec)
Revenue $ 1568 $ 1,630 @D% $ 5003 $ 4,897 2%
Operating income (loss) 187 (143) * 534 315 70 %
Operating margin 12 % (9)% 11 % 6 %

*  Not meaningful

One Quarter Comparison. The decrease in IMS segment revenue for the quarter ended September 29, 2023 compared with the quarter
ended September 30, 2022 was primarily due to lower revenues of $102 million in ISR from timing of aircraft missionization revenue, partially
offset by higher revenues of $24 million in Electro Optical from product volumes and $22 million in Maritime from classified program revenue.

The increase in IMS segment operating income for the quarter ended September 29, 2023 compared with the quarter ended September 30,
2022 was primarily due to a $367 million non-cash charge for impairment of goodwill recorded in Electro Optical and the sale of end-of-life
inventory in Commercial Aviation Systems during the quarter ended September 30, 2022, partially offset by a net change in EAC adjustments,
principally in ISR and Maritime.

Three Quarters Comparison. The increase in IMS segment revenue for the three quarters ended September 29, 2023 compared with the
three quarters ended September 30, 2022 was primarily due to revenues of $86 million in Electro Optical from higher volume in space and
sensors, $44 million in Commercial Aviation Solutions from volume and $38 million in Maritime largely from volume in power and energy
solutions and classified programs. Such increases were partially offset by lower revenue of $25 million in ISR from unfavorable program
execution partially offset by growth in domestic aircraft missionization.

The increase in IMS segment operating income for the three quarters ended September 29, 2023 compared with the three quarters ended
September 30, 2022 was primarily due to a $367 million non-cash charge for impairment of goodwill recorded in Electro Optical and the sale of
end-of-life inventory in Commercial Aviation Systems during the three quarters ended September 30, 2022, partially offset by a net change in
EAC adjustments, principally in ISR and Maritime, and a $12 million non-cash impairment of other assets related to facility closures and
restructuring of a customer contract during the three quarters ended September 29, 2023.

36




CS Segment

Quarter Ended Three Quarters Ended
September 29, September 30, September 29, September 30,
(Dollars in millions) 2023 2022 % Incl(Dec) 2023 2022 % Incl(Dec)
Revenue $ 1,255 $ 1,068 18% $ 3,707 $ 3,024 23 %
Operating income (loss) 282 (97) * 873 370 *
Operating margin 22 % (9)% 24 % 12 %

* Not meaningful

One Quarter Comparison. The increase in CS segment revenue for the quarter ended September 29, 2023 compared with the quarter
ended September 30, 2022 was primarily due to higher revenue of $121 million in Broadband Communications driven by the acquisition of TDL
and higher volume and $50 million in Tactical Communications from increased demand and improved electronic component availability.

The increase in CS segment operating income for the quarter ended September 29, 2023 compared with the quarter ended September 30,
2022 was primarily due to a $355 million non-cash charge for impairment of goodwill recorded in our Broadband reporting unit during the
quarter ended September 30, 2022, in addition to higher volume, including from the TDL acquisition, during the quarter ended September 29,
2023, partially offset by unfavorable product mix.

Three Quarters Comparison. The increase in CS segment revenue for the three quarters ended September 29, 2023 compared with the
three quarters ended September 30, 2022 was primarily due to higher revenue of $342 million in Broadband Communications from the
acquisition of TDL and higher volume on legacy platforms and $311 million in Tactical Communications and $72 million in Public Safety, both
from increased demand and improved electronic component availability.

The increase in CS segment operating income for the three quarters ended September 29, 2023 compared with the three quarters ended
September 30, 2022 was primarily due to a $355 million non-cash charge for impairment of goodwill recorded in our Broadband reporting unit
during the three quarters ended September 30, 2022 in addition to higher volume, including from the TDL acquisition, and favorable mix in
Tactical Communications during the three quarters ended September 29, 2023.

AR Segment
Quarter Ended Three Quarters Ended
(Dollars in millions) September 29, 2023 September 29, 2023
Revenue $ 455  $ 455
Operating income 56 56
Operating margin 12 % 12 %

Results driven by the strategic acquisition of AJRD from the July 28, 2023 acquisition date through September 29, 2023.
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Unallocated Corporate Expenses

Quarter Ended Three Quarters Ended
September 29, September 30, September 29, September 30,

(Dollars in millions) 2023 2022 2023 2022

Unallocated corporate department (expense) income, net® $ 14 $ 18 $ @7 $ 33
Amortization of acquisition-related intangibles® (208) (151) (546) (454)
Additional cost of sales related to the fair value step-up in inventory sold — — (30) —
Merger, acquisition, and divestiture related expenses (56) (31) (144) (117)
Sale of asset group and business divestiture-related gains, net — — 26 8
Impairment of goodwill and other assets® — — (39) —
LHX NeXt® (33) — (68) —
Charges for severance and other termination costs — (29) — (29)
Charge related to an additional pre-merger legal contingency — (31) — (31)
FAS/CAS operating adjustment® 27 22 72 65
Total unallocated items $ (256) $ (202) $ (756) $ (525)

(1) Includes certain corporate-level expenses that are not included in management’s evaluation of any segment’s operating performance.

(2) Includes amortization of identifiable intangible assets acquired in connection with business combinations. Because our acquisitions benefited the entire Company, the
amortization of identifiable intangible assets acquired was not allocated to any segment.

(3) For the three quarters ended September 29, 2023, includes a $21 million non-cash charge for impairment of intangible assets related to the closure of a facility and an $18
million charge related to an impairment of a customer contract. See Note G: Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets in these Notes for additional information regarding
impairment of intangible assets.

(4) Costs associated with transforming multiple functions, systems and processes to increase agility and competitiveness, including third-party consulting, workforce optimization
and incremental IT expenses for implementation of new systems.

(5) Represents the difference between the service cost component of FAS pension and OPEB cost and total CAS pension and OPEB cost and replaces the “Pension adjustment”
line item previously presented, which included the non-service components of FAS pension and OPEB income. See Note O: Business Segment Information in the Notes for
additional information regarding the FAS/CAS operating adjustment.

LIQUIDITY, CAPITAL RESOURCES AND FINANCIAL STRATEGIES

Cash Flows
Three Quarters Ended
(In millions) September 29, 2023 September 30, 2022
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period $ 880 $ 941
Operating Activities:
Net income 1,072 644
Non-cash adjustments 621 993
Changes in working capital (94) (382)
Other, net (292) 121
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,307 1,376
Net cash used in investing activities (6,938) (188)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 5,254 (1,566)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (4) (34)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (381) (412)
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 499 $ 529

Net cash provided by operating activities

The $69 million decrease in net cash provided by operating activities in the three quarters ended September 29, 2023 compared with the
three quarters ended September 30, 2022 was primarily due to increases in payments of income taxes, payroll related taxes and interest for
Term Loan 2025, the CP Program and AJRD Notes, partially
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offset by less cash used to fund net working capital (i.e., receivables, contract assets, inventories, accounts payable and contract liabilities).

Net cash used in investing activities

The $6.8 billion increase in net cash used in investing activities in the three quarters ended September 29, 2023 compared with the three
quarters ended September 30, 2022 was primarily due to the $6.7 billion cash used for the acquisitions of TDL and AJRD in the first and third
quarters of fiscal 2023, respectively.

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

The $6.8 billion increase in net cash provided by financing activities in the three quarters ended September 29, 2023 compared with the
three quarters ended September 30, 2022 was primarily due to the issuance and sale of $3.25 billion aggregate principal amount of new AJRD
Notes, $2.25 billion in proceeds from borrowings on our Term Loan 2025, for which $2.0 billion was utilized for the TDL acquisition, $2.0 billion
in net proceeds from issuances of commercial paper and the $382 million decrease in cash used to repurchase our common stock under our
share repurchase program. Such amounts were partially offset by an increase in repayments of borrowings, including the $800 million
aggregate principal amount of our 3.85% 2023 Notes and the $250 million aggregate principal amount of our Floating 2023 Notes.

See Note H: Debt and Credit Arrangements in the Notes for further information.

Cash and cash equivalents

At September 29, 2023, we had cash and cash equivalents of $499 million, which includes $294 million held by our foreign subsidiaries, a
significant portion of which we believe can be repatriated to the U.S. with minimal tax cost.

Capital Structure and Resources

Described below are significant changes to our credit arrangements and debt during the three quarters ended September 29, 2023.

Credit Arrangements

Credit Agreements. On July 28, 2023 we borrowed $2.1 billion under the 2023 Credit Agreement and used the proceeds together with
proceeds from the AJRD Notes issued during the quarter ended September 29, 2023 to fund the acquisition of AJRD and to pay related fees
and expenses. All borrowings under the 2023 Credit Agreement were repaid with proceeds of commercial paper issued during the quarter
ended September 29, 2023. At September 29, 2023, we had no outstanding borrowings and were in compliance with all covenants under our
2023 Credit Agreement.

Additionally, at September 29, 2023, we had no outstanding borrowings and were in compliance with all covenants under the $2.0 billion
2022 Credit Agreement.

Commercial Paper Programs. On March 14, 2023, we established the CP Program, which is supported by amounts unused and available
under the 2022 Credit Agreement and the 2023 Credit Agreement. From time to time, we use borrowings under the CP Program for general
corporate purposes, including the funding of acquisitions, debt refinancing, dividend payments and repurchases of our common stock.

During the quarter ended September 29, 2023, we had a maximum outstanding balance of $3.0 billion under our CP program, which we
primarily used to repay $2.1 billion outstanding under the 2023 Credit Agreement, a portion of which was repaid with cash on hand during the
quarter ended September 29, 2023.

Amounts outstanding under the CP Program at September 29, 2023 and the daily average balance and weighted average yield during the
quarter ended September 29, 2023 were as follows:
September 29, 2023

(In millions, except weighted average yield) Outstanding Daily Average
CP Program $ 2,030 $ 2,101
Weighted Average Yield 5.50 % 5.60 %

We terminated our prior existing $1.0 billion commercial paper program during the three quarters ended September 29, 2023.
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We expect balances under the CP Program to remain elevated as compared to historical norms through fiscal 2025.
For further information about our Credit Agreements and CP Program, see Note H: Debt and Credit Arrangements in the Notes.

Debt

At September 29, 2023, we had $11.5 billion of outstanding long-term debt, net, including the current portion of long-term debt, net and
financing lease obligations, the majority of which we incurred in connection with merger and acquisition activity.

Long-Term Debt Issued. During the three quarters ended September 29, 2023 we drew $2.25 billion in long-term debt on Term Loan 2025
and issued the AJRD Notes in an aggregate principal amount of $3.25 billion. For further information about the new debt issued, See Note H:
Debt and Credit Arrangements in the Notes.

Long-Term Debt Repayments. On March 14, 2023, we repaid the entire outstanding $250 million aggregate principal amount of our Floating
2023 Notes through a $250 million draw on Term Loan 2025. On June 15, 2023, we repaid the entire outstanding $800 million aggregate
principal amount of our 3.85% 2023 Notes through cash on hand and the issuance of commercial paper. The commercial paper issued to fund
repayment of the 3.85% 2023 Notes was repaid during the quarter ended September 29, 2023.

For a description of our long-term debt, see Note H: Debt and Credit Arrangements in the Notes and Note 13: Debt in our Fiscal 2022 Form
10-K.

Liquidity Assessment

Given our current cash position, outlook for funds generated from operations, credit ratings, available credit facilities, cash needs and debt
structure, we have not experienced to date, and do not expect to experience, any material issues with liquidity for the next 12 months and in the
longer term, although, we can give no assurances concerning our future liquidity, particularly in light of our overall level of debt, U.S.
Government budget uncertainties and the state of global commerce and general political and global financial uncertainty. Additionally, provisions
in the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017 required that, beginning in 2022, R&D expenditures be capitalized and amortized over five years. In the
future, Congress may consider legislation that would defer the amortization requirement to later years, possibly with retroactive effect. The
impact of this tax law on our cash from operations depends on the amount of R&D expenditures incurred and whether the Internal Revenue
Service issues guidance on the provision which differs from our current interpretation, among other things. See Part I: Item 1A. Risk Factors in
our Fiscal 2022 Form 10-K and Part Il. ltem 1A. Risk Factors of this Report.

Based on our current business plan and revenue prospects, we believe that our existing cash, funds generated from operations, availability
under our senior unsecured credit facilities and our CP Program and access to the public and private debt and equity markets will be sufficient
to provide for our anticipated working capital requirements, capital expenditures, dividend payments, repurchases under our share repurchase
program and repayments of our debt securities at maturity for the next twelve months and the reasonably foreseeable future thereafter. Our
total additions of property, plant and equipment net of proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment for fiscal 2023 are expected to
be approximately $330 million. Other than operating expenses, cash requirements for fiscal 2023 are expected to consist primarily of additions
of property, plant and equipment, and dividend payments. See “Capital Structure and Resources” and “Commercial Commitments” in Part II:
Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in our Fiscal 2022 Form 10-K for further
information regarding our cash requirements.
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Funding of Pension Plans

Funding requirements under applicable laws and regulations are a major consideration in making contributions to our U.S. pension plans.
Although we have significant discretion in making voluntary contributions, the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended
by the Pension Protection Act of 2006 and further amended by the Worker, Retiree, and Employer Recovery Act of 2008, the Moving Ahead for
Progress in the 21st Century Act (“MAP-21") and applicable Internal Revenue Code regulations, mandate minimum funding thresholds. The
Highway and Transportation Funding Act of 2014, the Bipartisan Budget Act of 2015, the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 and the
Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act further extended the interest rate stabilization provision of MAP-21. Failure to satisfy the minimum
funding thresholds could result in restrictions on our ability to amend the plans or make benefit payments. With respect to our U.S. qualified
defined benefit pension plans, we intend to contribute annually no less than the required minimum funding thresholds. As a result of prior
voluntary contributions and plan performance, except as it relates to pension plans acquired with AJRD, we are not required to make any
contributions to our U.S. qualified defined benefit pension plans in fiscal 2023 or for several years thereafter. As of September 29, 2023, we are
still evaluating the impact of the acquisition of AJRD and their pension plans on future contributions.

Future required contributions primarily will depend on the actual annual return on assets and the discount rate used to measure the benefit
obligation at the end of each year and our evaluation of the impact of the acquisition of AJRD. Depending on these factors, and the resulting
funded status of our pension plans, the level of future statutory required minimum contributions could be material. We had net unfunded defined
benefit plan obligations of $109 million as of September 29, 2023. See Note 14: Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits in our Fiscal 2022
Form 10-K and Note I: Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans in the Notes for further information regarding our pension plans.

Common Stock Repurchases

During the three quarters ended September 29, 2023, we used $518 million to repurchase 2.5 million shares of our common stock under
our share repurchase program at an average price per share of $204.40, including commissions of $0.02 per share. During the three quarters
ended September 29, 2023, $28 million in shares of our common stock were delivered to us or withheld by us to satisfy withholding taxes on
employee share-based awards. Shares repurchased by us are cancelled and retired.

Our repurchase program does not have a stated expiration date and authorizes us to repurchase shares of our common stock through open
market purchases, private transactions, transactions structured through investment banking institutions or any combination thereof. At
September 29, 2023, we had a remaining unused authorization under our repurchase program of $3.9 billion. We have announced that share
repurchases will be moderated in the near-term, but the level and timing of our repurchases depends on a number of factors, including our
financial condition, capital requirements, cash flows, results of operations, future business prospects and other factors our Board of Directors or
management may deem relevant. The timing, volume and nature of repurchases are also subject to market conditions, applicable securities
laws and other factors and are at our discretion and may be suspended or discontinued at any time. Additional information regarding our
repurchase program is in Part Il. Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds of this Report.

Dividends

On February 24, 2023, we announced that our Board of Directors increased the quarterly per share cash dividend rate on our common
stock from $1.12 to $1.14, commencing with the dividend declared by our Board of Directors for the first quarter of fiscal 2023, for an annualized
per share cash dividend rate of $4.56, which was our twenty-second consecutive annual increase in our quarterly cash dividend rate. Quarterly
cash dividends are typically paid in March, June, September and December. We paid $652 million in cash dividends during the three quarters
ended September 29, 2023. We currently expect to continue paying and increasing the rates of cash dividends in the near future, but we can
give no assurances concerning payment of future dividends or future dividend increases. The annual declaration of dividends by our Board of
Directors and the amount thereof will depend on a number of factors, including our financial condition, capital requirements, cash flows, results
of operations, future business prospects and other factors our Board of Directors may deem relevant.

41




Material Cash Requirements and Commercial Commitments

The amounts disclosed in our Fiscal 2022 Form 10-K include our material cash requirements and commercial commitments. Except for the
$3.25 billion aggregate principal amount of new long-term fixed-rate debt under the AJRD Notes, $2.25 billion in borrowings under Term Loan
2025, the level of indebtedness under our CP Program, the establishment of our 2023 Credit Facility and certain arrangements with off-balance
sheet risk, such as guarantees to U.S. government agencies for environmental remediation activities, acquired with the acquisition of AJRD,
compared to amounts disclosed in our Fiscal 2022 Form 10-K, there were no material changes to our material cash requirements from
contractual cash obligations to repay debt, to purchase goods and services or to make payments under operating leases or our commercial
commitments; or in our contingent liabilities on outstanding surety bonds, standby letters of credit agreements or other arrangements with
financial institutions and customers primarily relating to the guarantee of future performance on certain contracts to provide products and
services to customers or to obtain insurance policies with our insurance carriers as disclosed in our Fiscal 2022 Form 10-K. Further information
about our Credit Agreements and CP Program can be found in “Capital Structure and Resources” in this MD&A and Note H: Debt and Credit
Arrangements in the Notes.

There can be no assurance that our business will continue to generate cash flows at current or expected levels or that the cost or
availability of future borrowings, if any, under our CP Program, credit facilities, term loan or in the debt markets will not be impacted by any
potential future credit or capital markets disruptions. If we are unable to maintain cash balances, generate cash flow from operations or borrow
under our CP Program, our credit facilities or term loan sufficient to service our obligations, we may be required to reduce capital expenditures,
reduce or eliminate strategic acquisitions, reduce or terminate our share repurchases, reduce or eliminate dividends, refinance all or a portion of
our existing debt, obtain additional financing or sell assets. Our ability to make principal payments or pay interest on or refinance our
indebtedness depends on our future performance and financial results, which, to a certain extent, are subject to general conditions affecting the
defense, government and other markets we serve and to general economic, political, financial, competitive, legislative and regulatory factors
beyond our control.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

There have been no material changes to the critical accounting estimates disclosed in “Critical Accounting Estimates” in Part II: Item 7.
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in our Fiscal 2022 Form 10-K, except, as set forth
below.

Goodwill

We test our goodwill for impairment annually as of the first day of our fourth fiscal quarter, or under certain circumstances, more frequently,
such as when events or circumstances indicate there may be impairment or when we reorganize our reporting structure such that the
composition of one or more of our reporting units is affected.

Fiscal 2023 Impairment Tests. Effective December 31, 2022, we adjusted our reporting to better align our businesses and transferred our
ADG business (a reporting unit) from our IMS segment to our SAS segment (also a reporting unit). In connection with the realignment, we
reduced our reporting units from nine to eight as the ADG reporting unit and all $327 million of associated goodwill was absorbed by our
existing SAS reporting unit given the economic similarities of the two reporting units. Immediately before the realignment, we performed a
qualitative impairment assessment over our SAS reporting unit and a quantitative impairment assessment over our ADG reporting unit.
Immediately after the realignment, we performed a quantitative impairment assessment over the SAS reporting unit. We prepared estimates of
the fair value of our pre-realignment ADG reporting unit and post-realignment SAS reporting unit based on a combination of market-based
valuation techniques, utilizing quoted market prices, comparable publicly reported transactions and an income-based valuation technique using
projected discounted cash flows. These assessments indicated no impairment existed either before or after the realignment.

TDL Acquisition Goodwill. In connection with the January 3, 2023 acquisition of TDL, we recorded $1,117 million of goodwill in our
Broadband reporting unit within our CS segment.

AJRD Acquisition Goodwill. In connection with the July 28, 2023 acquisition of AJRD, we recorded $2,348 million of goodwill in our AR
segment, which is also the AR reporting unit.

See Note B: Acquisitions, Divestitures and Asset Sales and Note G: Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets in the Notes for additional
information.
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Business Combinations

We follow the acquisition method of accounting to record identifiable assets acquired, liabilities assumed and noncontrolling interests
recognized in connection with acquired businesses at their estimated fair value as of the date of acquisition.

Identifiable intangible assets from business combinations are recognized at their estimated fair values as of the date of acquisition and
consist of customer relationships, developed technology and trade names. Determination of the estimated fair value of identifiable intangible
assets requires judgment. The fair value of intangible assets is estimated using the relief from royalty method for the acquired developed
technology and trade names and the multi-period excess earnings method for the acquired customer relationships. Both of these fair value
methods are income-based valuation approaches, which require judgment to estimate appropriate discount rates, royalty rates related to the
developed technology and trade name intangible assets, revenue growth attributable to the intangible assets and remaining useful lives. Finite-
lived identifiable intangible assets are amortized to expense over their useful lives, generally ranging from two to twenty seven years. The fair
value of identifiable intangible assets acquired in connection with the TDL and AJRD acquisitions was $755 million and $2.860 billion,
respectively.

See Note B: Acquisitions, Divestitures and Asset Sales and Note G: Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets in the Notes for additional
information.

Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

See Note A: Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies in the Notes for new accounting pronouncements that
became effective during fiscal 2023.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS AND FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT FUTURE RESULTS

This Report contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties, as well as assumptions that may not materialize or
prove correct, which could cause our results to differ materially from those expressed in or implied by such forward-looking statements. All
statements other than statements of historical fact are statements that could be deemed forward-looking statements, including, but not limited
to, statements concerning: our plans, strategies and objectives for future operations; new products, systems, technologies, services or
developments; future economic conditions, performance or outlook; future political conditions; the outcome of contingencies or litigation;
environmental remediation cost estimates; the potential level of share repurchases, dividends or pension contributions; potential acquisitions or
divestitures; the integration of our acquisitions; the value of contract awards and programs; expected revenue; expected cash flows or capital
expenditures; our beliefs or expectations; activities, events or developments that we intend, expect, project, believe or anticipate will or may
occur in the future; and assumptions underlying any of the foregoing. Forward-looking statements may be identified by their use of forward-
looking terminology, such as “believes,” “expects,” “may,” “could,” “should,” “would,” “will,” “intends,” “plans,” “estimates,” “anticipates,” “projects”
and similar words or expressions. You should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which reflect our management’s
opinions only as of the date of filing of this Report and are not guarantees of future performance or actual results. Factors that might cause our
results to differ materially from those expressed in or implied by these forward-looking statements, from our current expectations or projections
or from our historical results include, but are not limited to, those discussed in Part I: Iltem 1A. Risk Factors in our Fiscal 2022 Form 10-K and in
Part Il. Item 1A. Risk Factors of this Report. All forward-looking statements are qualified by, and should be read in conjunction with, those risk
factors. Forward-looking statements are made in reliance on the safe harbor provisions of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended (“Securities Act”), and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (“Exchange Act”), and are made as of the
date of filing of this Report, and we disclaim any intention or obligation, other than imposed by law, to update or revise any forward-looking
statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or developments or otherwise, after the date of filing of this Report or, in the
case of any document incorporated by reference, the date of that document.

”ou ”ow ” o, ” o, ” oW ”ow ”ow

The following are some of the factors we believe could cause our actual results to differ materially from our historical results or our current
expectations or projections. Other factors besides those listed here also could adversely affect us. See Part I: Item 1A. Risk Factors in our
Fiscal 2022 Form 10-K and Part Il. Iltem 1A. Risk Factors of this Report for more information regarding factors that might cause our results to
differ materially from those expressed in or implied by the forward-looking statements contained in this Report.

*  We depend on U.S. Government customers for a significant portion of our revenue, and a reduction in U.S. Government funding or a
change in U.S. Government spending priorities could have an adverse impact on our business, financial condition, results of operations,
cash flows and equity.
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Our results of operations and cash flows are substantially affected by our mix of fixed-price, cost-plus and time-and-material type
contracts. In particular, our fixed-price contracts could subject us to losses in the event of cost overruns or a significant increase in or
sustained period of increased inflation.

We depend significantly on U.S. Government contracts, which often are only partially funded, subject to immediate termination and
heavily regulated and audited. The termination or failure to fund, or negative audit findings for, one or more of these contracts could
have an adverse impact on our business, financial condition, results of operations, cash flows and equity.

The U.S. Government's budget deficit and the national debt, as well as a breach of the debt ceiling, could have an adverse impact on
our business, financial condition, results of operations, cash flows and equity.

We participate in markets that are often subject to uncertain economic conditions, which makes it difficult to estimate growth in our
markets and, as a result, future income and expenditures.

We cannot predict the consequences of future geo-political events, but they may adversely affect the markets in which we operate, our
ability to insure against risks, our operations or our profitability.

We are subject to government investigations, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of
operations, cash flows and equity.

We derive a significant portion of our revenue from international operations and are subject to the risks of doing business internationally.
Disputes with our subcontractors or key suppliers, or their inability to perform or timely deliver our components, parts or services, could
cause our products and/or services to be produced or delivered in an untimely or unsatisfactory manner.

We must attract and retain key employees, and any failure to do so could seriously harm us.

We could be negatively impacted by a security breach, through cyber-attack, cyber intrusion, insider threats or otherwise, or other
significant disruption of our information technology networks and related systems or of those we operate for certain of our customers.
Our future success will depend on our ability to develop new products and services and technologies that achieve market acceptance in
our current and future markets.

We have significant operations in locations that could be materially and adversely impacted in the event of a natural disaster or other
significant disruption.

Changes in estimates we use in accounting for many of our programs could adversely affect our future financial condition and results of
operations.

Our level of indebtedness and our ability to make payments on or service our indebtedness and our unfunded defined benefit plans
liability may materially adversely affect our financial and operating activities or our ability to incur additional debt.

A downgrade in our credit ratings could materially adversely affect our business.

Market conditions or volatility could impact our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

The level of returns on defined benefit plan assets, changes in interest rates and other factors could materially adversely affect our
financial condition, results of operations, cash flows and equity in future periods.

Changes in our effective tax rate or additional tax exposures may have an adverse effect on our results of operations and cash flows.
We may not be successful in obtaining the necessary export licenses to conduct certain operations abroad, and Congress may prevent
proposed sales to certain foreign governments.

Unforeseen environmental issues, including regulations related to GHG emissions or change in customer sentiment related to
environmental sustainability, could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, cash flows
and equity.

Our reputation and ability to do business may be impacted by the improper conduct of our employees, agents or business partners.
The outcome of litigation or arbitration in which we are involved from time to time is unpredictable, and an adverse decision in any such
matter could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations, cash flows and equity.

Third parties have claimed in the past and may claim in the future that we are infringing directly or indirectly upon their intellectual
property rights, and third parties may infringe upon our intellectual property rights.

We face certain significant risk exposures and potential liabilities that may not be covered adequately by insurance or indemnity.
Challenges arising from the expanded operations from the acquisition of TDL and AJRD may affect our future results.
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» With our acquisition of AJRD, there is increased risk of the release, unplanned ignition, explosion, or improper handling of dangerous
materials used in our business, which could disrupt our operations and adversely affect our financial results.

* The real estate assets acquired as part of our acquisition of AJRD are subject to various risks due to environmental liabilities, regulatory
exposure and vulnerability to changes to the real estate market, any of which could adversely affect the value of such assets or our
financial results.

e Strategic transactions, including mergers, acquisitions and divestitures, involve significant risks and uncertainties that could adversely
affect our business, financial condition, results of operations, cash flows and equity.

» Changes in future business or other market conditions could cause business investments and/or recorded goodwill or other long-term
assets to become impaired, resulting in substantial losses and write-downs that would materially adversely affect our results of
operations and financial condition.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.

In the normal course of business, we are exposed to the risks associated with foreign currency exchange rates, changes in interest rates
and market return fluctuations on our defined benefit plans. Other than the changes in our commercial paper and debt balances discussed in
the Liquidity and Capital Resources section of Part I: Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations above, there were no material changes during the three quarters ended September 29, 2023, with respect to the information
appearing in Part Il: Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk in our Fiscal 2022 Form 10-K.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in our reports filed or
submitted under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in SEC rules and forms
and accumulated and communicated to management, including our Chief Executive Officer (“CEQO”) and Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”), as
appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures. As required by Rule 13a-15 under the Exchange Act, as of September 29,
2023, we carried out an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures under the
supervision and with the participation of our management, including our CEO and our CFO, and have concluded that as of September 29, 2023
our disclosure controls and procedures were effective.

Changes in Internal Control

We periodically review our internal control over financial reporting (“ICFR”) as part of our efforts to ensure compliance with the requirements
of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. In addition, we routinely review our system of ICFR to identify potential changes to our
processes and systems that may improve controls and increase efficiency, while ensuring that we maintain an effective internal control
environment.

The TDL acquisition is being integrated into the existing CS segment systems and processes from an ICFR perspective. Further, as part of
our acquisition of AJRD, we are in the process of incorporating our controls and procedures with respect to AJRD’s operations, and we will
include internal controls with respect to AJRD’s operations in our assessment of the effectiveness of our ICFR as of the end of fiscal 2024.
Other than changes related to incorporating our controls and procedures with respect to TDL and AJRD operations, there have been no
changes in our ICFR that occurred during the quarter ended September 29, 2023 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to
materially affect, our ICFR.
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PART Il. OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

See Note P: Legal Proceedings and Contingencies in the Notes for discussion regarding material legal proceedings and contingencies.
Except as set forth in such discussion, there have been no material developments in legal proceedings as reported in Part I: Item 3. Legal
Proceedings in our Fiscal 2022 Form 10-K.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS.

Investors should carefully review and consider the information regarding certain factors that could materially affect our business, results of
operations, financial condition, cash flows and equity as set forth in Part I: Item 1A. Risk Factors in our Fiscal 2022 Form 10-K. There have
been no material changes, other than the amendment below, to the risk factors disclosed in our Fiscal 2022 Form 10-K. We may disclose
changes to our risk factors or disclose additional risk factors from time to time in our future filings with the SEC. Additional risks and
uncertainties not presently known to us or that we currently believe not to be material also may adversely impact our business, financial
condition, results of operations, cash flows and equity.

With our acquisition of AJRD, there is increased risk of the release, unplanned ignition, explosion, or improper handling of dangerous materials
used in our business, which could disrupt our operations and adversely affect our financial results.

With our acquisition of AJRD, our business operations are subject to increased risk in connection with the handling, production, and
disposition of potentially explosive and ignitable energetic materials and other dangerous chemicals, including motors and other materials used
in rocket propulsion. The handling, production, transport, and disposition of hazardous materials could result in incidents that temporarily shut
down or otherwise disrupt our manufacturing operations and could cause production delays. A release of these chemicals or an unplanned
ignition or explosion could result in death or significant injuries to employees and others. Material property damage to us or third parties could
also occur. The use of these products in applications by our customers could also result in liability if an explosion, unplanned ignition or fire
were to occur. Extensive regulations apply to the handling of explosive and energetic materials, including but not limited to, regulations
governing hazardous substances and hazardous waste. The failure to properly store and ultimately dispose of such materials could create
significant liability and/or result in regulatory sanctions. Any release, unplanned ignition or explosion could expose us to adverse publicity or
liability for damages or cause production delays, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results
of operations, cash flows and equity.

The real estate assets acquired as part of our acquisition of AJRD are subject to various risks due to environmental liabilities, regulatory
exposure and vulnerability to changes to the real estate market, any of which could adversely affect the value of such assets or our financial
results.

The real estate assets acquired as part of our acquisition of AJRD are subject to various risks that could adversely affect the value of such
assets or our financial results, including the following:

» our reserves for estimated future environmental obligations relating to real estate assets acquired as part of our acquisition of AJRD
may prove to be insufficient;

* we may be unable to complete environmental remediation or to have state and federal environmental restrictions on our real estate
assets lifted;

e our real estate assets are subject to various Federal, state, and local regulations and restrictions that may impose significant limitations,
including those related to endangered or protected wildlife species, zoning, land use, building, occupancy and other required
governmental permits and authorizations, and such regulations and restrictions are subject to change; and

» economic and political uncertainties could have an adverse effect on real estate market conditions, construction costs, availability of
labor and materials and other factors in the Sacramento region, where the acquired real estate assets are concentrated, and the real
estate industry in general.
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ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES, USE OF PROCEEDS, AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY
SECURITIES.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table sets forth information with respect to repurchases by us of our common stock during the quarter ended September 29,
2023:

Maximum approximate

Total number of dollar value
shares purchased of shares that may
as part of publicly yet be purchased under

Total number of Average price announced plans or the plans or programs®
Period* shares purchased paid per share programs® ($ in millions)
Month No. 1
(July 1, 2023 - July 28, 2023)
Repurchase program® — 3 = — 3 3,935
Employee transactions® 20,838 $ 197.93 — —
Month No. 2
(July 29, 2023 - August 25, 2023)
Repurchase program® — $ = — 3 3,935
Employee transactions® 45,608 $ 182.53 — —
Month No. 3
(August 26, 2023 - September 29, 2023)
Repurchase program® — $ — — $ 3,935
Employee transactions® 21,405 $ 174.86 — —
Total 87,851 — 3% 3,935

* Periods represent our fiscal months.

(1) On October 21, 2022, we announced that our Board of Directors approved a $3.0 billion share repurchase authorization under our share repurchase program that was in
addition to the remaining unused authorization of $1.5 billion at that time. Our repurchase program does not have an expiration date and authorizes us to repurchase shares of
our common stock through open market purchases, private transactions, transactions structured through investment banking institutions or any combination thereof. As of
September 29, 2023, the remaining unused authorization under our repurchase programs was $3.9 billion (as reflected in the table above).

(2) Represents a combination of (a) shares of our common stock delivered to us in satisfaction of the tax withholding obligation of holders of performance units, restricted units or
restricted shares that vested during the quarter and (b) performance units, restricted units or restricted shares returned to us upon retirement or employment termination of
employees. Our stock incentive plans provide that the value of shares delivered to us to pay the exercise price of options or to cover tax withholding obligations shall be the
closing price of our common stock on the date the relevant transaction occurs.

Sales of Unregistered Equity Securities
During the quarter ended September 29, 2023, we did not issue or sell any unregistered equity securities.

ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES.
None.
ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES.

Not applicable.

ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION.

None.
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ITEM 6. EXHIBITS.

The following exhibits are filed herewith or are incorporated herein by reference to exhibits previously filed with the SEC:
(2)* Agreement and Plan of Merger,_dated as of December 17, 2022, by and among_L3Harris Technologies,_Inc., Aquila Merger Sub Inc. and

on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 19, 2022. (Commission File Number 1-3863)

(10.1)** L3Harris Technologies,_Inc. Executive Change in Control Severance Plan, effective as of July 21, 2023, incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to L3Harris Technologies, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with SEC on July 24 2023. (Commission
File Number 1-3863)

(10.2)** Summary of Annual Compensation of L3Harris Technologies,_Inc. Non-Employee Directors,_effective as of January 1, 2024,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to L 3Harris Technologies, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with SEC on July
24 2023. (Commission File Number 1-3863)

(10.3)** Amendment Thirteen to the L3Harris Retirement Savings Plan (as amended and restated effective January 1, 2021)_dated July 17,
2023.

(15)__Letter Regarding_Unaudited Interim Financial Information.

(31.1) Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)_Certification of Chief Executive Officer.
(31.2)__Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)_Certification of Chief Financial Officer.
(32.1)__Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer.
(32.2)__Section 1350 Cetrtification of Chief Financial Officer.

(101) The financial information from L3Harris Technologies, Inc.’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 29,
2023 formatted in Inline XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language) includes: (i) the Condensed Consolidated Statement of
Operations, (ii) the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Loss), (iii) the Condensed Consolidated
Balance Sheet, (iv) the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, (v) the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Equity,
and (vi) the Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

(104) Cover Page Interactive Data File formatted in Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101.

* Schedules have been omitted pursuant to Item 601(a)(5) of Regulation S-K. L3Harris Technologies, Inc. hereby undertakes to furnish supplementally copies of any of the omitted
schedules upon request by the SEC.
** Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

48



https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/202058/000110465922128031/tm2232961d1_ex2-1.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/202058/000020205823000041/exhibit101cicseveranceplan.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/202058/000020205823000041/exhibit101cicseveranceplan.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/202058/000020205823000041/summary_ofxnon-employeexdi.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/202058/000020205823000041/summary_ofxnon-employeexdi.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/202058/000020205823000041/summary_ofxnon-employeexdi.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/202058/000020205823000041/summary_ofxnon-employeexdi.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/202058/000020205823000041/summary_ofxnon-employeexdi.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/202058/000020205823000041/summary_ofxnon-employeexdi.htm

SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf
by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

L3HARRIS TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
(Registrant)
Date: October 27, 2023 By: /sl MICHELLE L. TURNER

Michelle L. Turner

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer and Duly Authorized Officer)
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Exhibit 10.3

AMENDMENT NUMBER THIRTEEN
TO THE
L3HARRIS RETIREMENT SAVINGS PLAN

WHEREAS, L3Harris Technologies, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“L3Harris”), heretofore has adopted and maintains the
L3Harris Retirement Savings Plan, as amended and restated effective January 1, 2021 (the "Plan");

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 17.1 of the Plan, the Employee Benefits Committee of L3Harris (the “Committee”) has
the authority to amend the Plan;

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 13.3 of the Plan, the Committee has delegated certain of such amendment authority to the
head of global benefits of L3Harris (currently, the Senior Director, Global Benefits) (the “Head of Global Benefits”); and

WHEREAS, the Head of Global Benefits desires to amend the Plan’s service crediting provisions to eliminate the
additional year of service credited in the case of certain terminations due to a reduction in force.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that section (e) within the definition of “Service” set forth in Article 2 of the
Plan (Definitions) hereby is deleted in its entirety, effective for terminations of employment occurring on or after July 18, 2023.

APPROVED by the HEAD OF GLOBAL BENEFITS on this 17" day of July, 2023.

/s/ Allison Oncel

Allison Oncel



Exhibit 15

Acknowledgment of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of L3Harris Technologies, Inc.:

We are aware of the incorporation by reference of our report dated October 27, 2023, relating to the unaudited condensed consolidated interim
financial statements of L3Harris Technologies, Inc. that is included in its Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 29, 2023, in the following

Registration Statements of L3Harris Technologies, Inc.:

Form S-3

Form S-8
Form S-8

Form S-8
Form S-8
Form S-8
Form S-8
Form S-8
Form S-8

/sl Ernst & Young LLP
Orlando, Florida
October 27, 2023

No.

No.
No.

No.
No.
No.
No.
No.
No.

333-270103

333-268794
333-232482

333-222821
333-192735
333-163647
333-75114

333-130124
333-207774

L3Harris Technologies, Inc. Debt Securities, Preferred Stock, Common Stock,
Depositary Shares and Warrants

L3Harris Technologies, Inc. Retirement Savings Plan

L3 Technologies, Inc. Amended and Restated 2008 Long Term Performance Plan;
L3 Technologies, Inc. Master Savings Plan; and Aviations Communications &
Surveillance Systems 401(k) Plan

Harris Corporation Retirement Plan

Harris Corporation Retirement Plan

Harris Corporation Retirement Plan

Harris Corporation Retirement Plan

Harris Corporation 2005 Equity Incentive Plan
L3Harris Technologies, Inc. 2015 Equity Incentive Plan



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, Christopher E. Kubasik, Chair and Chief Executive Officer of L3Harris Technologies, Inc., certify that:

1.
2.

I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 29, 2023 of L3Harris Technologies, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):

(@) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: October 27, 2023 /sl Christopher E. Kubasik

Name: Christopher E. Kubasik
Title: Chair and Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, Michelle L. Turner, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of L3Harris Technologies, Inc., certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 29, 2023 of L3Harris Technologies, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):

(@) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: October 27, 2023 /s/ Michelle L. Turner

Name: Michelle L. Turner
Title: Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

Certification
Pursuant to Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the
United States Code as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the filing of the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of L3Harris Technologies, Inc. (“L3Harris”) for the quarter ended
September 29, 2023, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), the undersigned, Christopher E.

Kubasik, Chair and Chief Executive Officer of L3Harris, hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of
L3Harris as of the dates and for the periods expressed in the Report.

Date: October 27, 2023 /sl Christopher E. Kubasik
Name: Christopher E. Kubasik

Title: Chair and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 32.2

Certification
Pursuant to Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the
United States Code as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the filing of the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of L3Harris Technologies, Inc. (“L3Harris”) for the quarter ended
September 29, 2023, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), the undersigned, Michelle L.

Turner, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of L3Harris, hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of
L3Harris as of the dates and for the periods expressed in the Report.

Date: October 27, 2023 /s/ Michelle L. Turner

Name: Michelle L. Turner
Title: Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer




